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July 13, 2019 

 

BSE Ltd. 

Phiroze  Jeejeebhoy  Towers 

Dalal Street 

Mumbai 400 001 

 

Dear Sirs, 

   

Sub: Compliance under Regulations 30 and 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

 

 As required under Regulations 30 and 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, we are attaching herewith 

the following: 

1. Notice of the 59th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 

August 6, 2019, at 4.00 p.m. at Rama Watumull Auditorium, Kishinchand Chellaram 

College, Dinshaw Wacha Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400020; and 

2. Annual Report for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2019. 

 

 Thanking you, 

 

         Yours faithfully, 

         for Hawkins Cookers Limited 

    

               Mrs. Hutoxi Bhesania 

      Company Secretary 
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 59th Annual General

Meeting of the shareholders of the Company will be held

on Tuesday, the 6th day of August, 2019, at Rama

Watumull Auditorium, Kishinchand Chellaram College,

Dinshaw Wacha Road, Churchgate, Mumbai 400020, at

4:00 pm to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial

statements of the Company for the financial year ended

March 31, 2019, and the Directors’ and the Auditors’

Reports thereon.

2. To declare a Dividend of Rs.80 per equity share for

the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Subhadip Dutta

Choudhury (DIN:00141545), who retires by rotation and,

being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as

a Director of the Company.

NOTICE TO SHAREHOLDERS FOR

THE 59TH AGM OF THE COMPANY

*Note: Shareholders coming in vehicles from

Veer Nariman Road should turn right after Churchgate

Station on to Maharshi Karve Road (adjacent to

Oval Maidan), then turn right at Dinshaw Wacha Road.

Special Business

4. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the

following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and

other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies

Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Companies (Appointment

and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, and

the Securit ies and Exchange Board of India

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, Professor Leena Chatterjee

(DIN:08379794), who was appointed as an

Additional Director of the Company by the Board of

Directors with effect from April 1, 2019, pursuant to the

provisions of Section 161 of the Act, and under

Article 118 of the Articles of Association of the

Company and who holds office up to the date of the

59th Annual General Meeting of the Company

and who has submitted a declaration that she

meets the criteria for independence as provided

in the Act and the Listing Regulations and who is

eligible for being appointed as an Independent

Director and in respect of whom the Company

has received a Notice in writing from a Member

under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013,

proposing her candidature for the office of Director,

be and is hereby appointed as an Independent

Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation,

to hold office for a period of five consecutive years from

August 6, 2019, to August 5, 2024.”
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5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)

Rules, 2014, and the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, Mr. J. M. Mukhi (DIN:00152618), who

was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company at the 54th Annual General Meeting of the

Company and who holds office of the Independent

Director up to September 18, 2019, and who has

submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for

independence as provided in the Act and the

Listing Regulations and who is eligible for being

re-appointed as an Independent Director and in respect

of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing

from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies

Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of

Director, be re-appointed as an Independent Director of

the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office

for a second term of five consecutive years from

September 19, 2019, to September 18, 2024.”

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)

Rules, 2014, and the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji (DIN:00087529),

who was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company at the 54th Annual General Meeting of the

Company and who holds office of the Independent

Director up to September 18, 2019, and who has

submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for

independence as provided in the Act and the

Listing Regulations and who is eligible for being

re-appointed as an Independent Director and in respect

of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing

from a Member under Section 160 of the Companies

Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the office of

Director, be re-appointed as an Independent Director of

the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, to hold office

for a second term of five consecutive years from

September 19, 2019, to September 18, 2024.”

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)

Rules, 2014, and the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, Mr. Gerson da Cunha (DIN:00060055),

who was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company at the 54th Annual General Meeting of the

Company and who holds office of the Independent

Director up to September 18, 2019, and who has

submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for

independence as provided in the Act and the

Listing Regulations and who is eligible for being

re-appointed as an Independent Director and in respect

of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing

from a Member under Section 160 of the

Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the

office of Director, be re-appointed as an Independent

Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation,

to hold office for a second term of five consecutive years

from September 19, 2019, to September 18, 2024.”

8. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Companies (Appointment and Qualif ications of

Directors) Rules, 2014, and the Securit ies and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

General V. N. Sharma (Retd.) (DIN:00177350), who was

appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company at the 54th Annual General Meeting of the

Company and who holds office of the Independent

Director up to September 18, 2019, and who has

submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for

independence as provided in the Act and the

Listing Regulations and who is eligible for being

re-appointed as an Independent Director and in

respect of whom the Company has received a Notice in

writing from a Member under Section 160 of the

Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the

office of Director, be re-appointed as an Independent

Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation,

to hold office for a second term of five consecutive years

from September 19, 2019, to September 18, 2024.”
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9. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 149, 150, 152 read with Schedule IV and other

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the

Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)

Rules, 2014, and the Securities and Exchange Board of

India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, Mr. E. A. Kshirsagar (DIN:00121824), who

was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company at the 54th Annual General Meeting of the

Company and who holds office of the Independent

Director up to September 18, 2019, and who has

submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria for

independence as provided in the Act and the

Listing Regulations and who is eligible for being

re-appointed as an Independent Director and in respect

of whom the Company has received a Notice in writing

from a Member under Section 160 of the

Companies Act, 2013, proposing his candidature for the

office of Director, be re-appointed as an Independent

Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation,

to hold office for a second term of five consecutive years

from September 19, 2019, to September 18, 2024.”

10. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and other

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies

Act, 2013, the Company hereby approves the

re-appointment of and remuneration payable to

Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury (DIN:00141545), as

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors and

Managing Director designated as Chief Executive Officer,

for a period of three years from October 1, 2019,

to September 30, 2022, on the terms and

conditions as stated in the Agreement proposed

to be executed between the Company and

Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury on or before July 15, 2019.”

11. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 196, 197, 198, 203, Schedule V and other

applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,

the Company hereby approves the re-appointment of

and remuneration payable to Mr. Sudeep Yadav

(DIN:02909892), as Executive Director-Finance and

Administration, for a period of three years from

October 1, 2019, to September 30, 2022, on the terms

and conditions as stated in the Agreement proposed to

be executed between the Company and

Mr. Sudeep Yadav on or before July 15, 2019.”

12. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of

Sections 73, 76 and other applicable provisions,

if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, the consent of the

Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded

to the Board of Directors of the Company to invite and

accept fixed deposits from the Members of the Company

and the Public within the limits prescribed in the Act and

the overall borrowing limits of the Company as approved

by the Members from time to time.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors be

and is hereby authorised to finalise the scheme for the

invitation and acceptance of fixed deposits from the

Members of the Company and the Public and to sign

and execute deeds, applications and documents that

may be required on behalf of the Company and generally

to do all such other acts, deeds, matters and things as

may be necessary, proper, expedient or incidental to give

effect to this resolution.”

 By Order of the Board

Mumbai  Hutoxi Bhesania

July 3, 2019 Company Secretary

NOTES

1. A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting

is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a poll

instead of himself through the form separately enclosed

herewith in this envelope and such proxy need not be a

member of the Company. Proxies, in order to be valid,

must be lodged at the Registered Office of the Company

not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement

of the meeting. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of

Members not exceeding fifty and holding in the

aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share

capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A Member

holding more than ten percent of the total share capital

of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a

single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a

proxy for any other person or Member.

2. Members/Joint shareholder(s)/Proxies are requested to:

(a) bring the attendance slip (separately enclosed

herewith in this envelope) duly completed to the

meeting and sign the same at the meeting in order

to obtain entry.

(b) bring their copy of the Annual Report with them

to the Annual General Meeting.
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3. Members holding physical shares are requested to

notify immediately the change of address/change in bank

details, if any, to the Company's Registrar and Share

Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., C-101, 247 Park,

LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400083, or to the

Company, quoting their folio number. Members holding

shares in the dematerialised form are advised to inform

the change in address/bank details, if any, to their

respective Depository Participants.

4. Members are also requested to:

(a) Submit their National Electronic Clearing

Service (NECS) mandates to the Company's

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime

India Pvt. Ltd., at the aforesaid address in order to

receive the dividend, if any, directly into their

specified bank account in respect of shares held

in the physical form and to the respective

Depository Participants in respect of the shares

held in dematerialised form, in case they have not

done so earlier.

(b) In case any Members wish to additionally

receive Annual Reports in a soft copy, they should

register their e-mail address for the purpose by

sending an e-mail giving their registered folio

number and/or DP ID/Client ID to the Company's

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime

India Pvt. Ltd., at hawkins.coenq@linkintime.co.in.

5. During the financial year 2018-19, the Securities

Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated that,

after April 1, 2019, requests for effecting transfer of

securities (except in case of transmission or transposition

of securities) shall not be processed unless the securities

are held in a dematerialized form with a depository.

6. The Register of Members and Transfer Books will

remain closed from July 31, 2019, to August 6, 2019, both

days inclusive.

7. The dividend, if approved at the meeting, will be

made payable to those Members whose names

appear on the Company's Register of Members on

August 6, 2019, in respect of shares held in physical

form. In respect of shares held in dematerialised

form, the dividend will be payable on the basis of

beneficial ownership as on July 30, 2019, as per the

details furnished by the National Securities Depository

Limited (NSDL) and/or the Central Depository Services

(India) Limited (CDSL) for this purpose.

8. Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and

the accompanying Statements are open for inspection

by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company

between 10:00 am and 1:00 pm on all working days of

the Company and will also be kept open at the venue of

the 59th AGM till the conclusion of the said AGM.

9. Information required under Regulation 36(3)

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with respect to the

Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the

59th Annual General Meeting in respect of Item

Nos. 3 to 11 of the Notice, Regulation 17 (1A) of the

said SEBI Regulations with respect to Item Nos. 5 to 9 of

the Notice in respect of justification for the

re-appointment of the five Independent Directors and

Explanatory Statements of the Special Business pursuant

to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect

of Item Nos. 4 to 12 of the Notice are given as follows:

Item Nos. 3 and 10 of the Notice: Re-appointment of

Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury, a Director retiring

by rotation and his re-appointment as Vice-Chairman

and Managing Director designated as

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury, 51 years of age,

holds a B. Tech. Degree in Electrical Engineering from

the Indian Institute of Technology, Kharagpur, and a

Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management

from the Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta.

He joined the Company in 1992 as a Management

Trainee and worked for eight years as a Sales Manager

in various regions with increasing levels of responsibility.

He moved to Marketing as Vice President in 2000. He was

first elected by the Members as a Wholetime Director

designated as Executive Director-Marketing with effect

from August 1, 2004, and then as Vice-Chairman of

the Board of Directors and Managing Director

designated as Chief Executive Officer in 2006. He was

re-elected as Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors

and Managing Director designated as

Chief Executive Officer in 2007, 2010, 2013 and 2016.

Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury's appointment as

Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors and Managing

Director designated as Chief Executive Officer of your

Company comes to an end on September 30, 2019.

Mr. Dutta Choudhury had attended all the four

Board Meetings held in the year 2018-19. The

total remuneration of Mr. Dutta Choudhury for the

year 2018-19 was Rs.357.82 lakhs.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the

Board of Directors at its Meeting (Serial No.16) held on

May 29, 2019, decided that it is in the interest

of your Company to re-appoint Mr. Dutta Choudhury

in his present position for a period of three years

from October 1, 2019, on revised terms, subject to

your approval.
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The main terms and conditions of the

re-appointment of Mr. Dutta Choudhury as Vice-Chairman

of the Board of Directors and Managing Director

designated as Chief Executive Officer are summarised

as follows:

Salary: Rs. 5,00,000 per month. Commission on net

profits: at the rate of 3.5%. Provident Fund/Superannuation/

Annuity Fund/Pension Fund contributions: as per the Rules

of the Company. Gratuity: as per the Rules of the

Company, not exceeding half a month's salary for each

completed year of service. Company owned/leased

accommodation may be provided for which 10% of the

salary to be deducted; in case no accommodation is

provided, House Rent Allowance at the rate of 60% of his

salary. Home Appliances to be provided by the Company

as per the Company's Rules. Medical expenses incurred

by Mr. Dutta Choudhury and his family to be borne by the

Company; medical insurance for Mr. Dutta Choudhury

and his family may be arranged by the Company at its

cost - the Company to use such insurance to defray

expenses covered by it. Leave Travel Allowance:

Rs.80,000 per annum. Clubs: Corporate membership of

up to two clubs the fees of which shall be paid by the

Company. Personal Accident Insurance at an annual

premium not exceeding Rs.20,000. Life Insurance at an

annual premium not exceeding Rs.50,000 or the benefit

of Life Insurance for a sum assured of up to Rs.2 crores as

part of the group insurance policy taken by the Company.

Car and driver: for business and personal use. Telephone

and Internet: free at residence, also one Mobile

connection to be provided (long distance personal calls

excluded). Leave as per the rules of the Company;

encashment of leave at the end of the tenure. Total

remuneration is subject to an overall ceiling of 5% of the

net profits of the Company computed as per Section 198

of the Companies Act, 2013. In case of inadequate or

no profits, salary and perquisites to be limited to

Rs.10,00,000 per month excluding terminal benefits to

the extent permitted under Schedule V of the Companies

Act, 2013. Mr. Dutta Choudhury is required to maintain

confidentiality of company information and not to be

involved directly or indirectly in any competitive business.

The designation of and allocation of work to

Mr. Dutta Choudhury may be altered by the Board without

affecting any other term or condition. Agreement is

terminable by three months' notice given by either party.

Ceasing of employment causes end of Directorship. In

case of dispute, arbitration under The Arbitration and

Conciliation Act, 1996, is mandatory.

Mr. Dutta Choudhury is not disqualified from being

appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the

Companies Act, 2013, or under any other provisions of

the said Act.

Mr. Dutta Choudhury is not a Director of any other

Company. He holds 50 shares in the Company. He is not

related to any Director or Key Managerial Personnel of

the Company.

A copy of the Agreement between the Company

and Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury dated June 11, 2019,

is available for inspection by the Members at the

Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am

and 1.00 pm on all working days of the Company and

will also be kept open at the venue of the 59th AGM till

the conclusion of the said AGM.

Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury is concerned and

interested in these resolutions and his relatives may be

deemed to be concerned and interested in these

resolutions. Save and except the above, none of the other

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and

their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in

these resolutions.

The Board of Directors recommends the

Ordinary Resolutions at Item Nos. 3 and 10 for your

approval.

Item No. 4 of the Notice: Appointment of

Professor Leena Chatterjee

The Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has

amended the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR), which provides

for the appointment of an Independent Woman Director

by April 1, 2020, by the listed companies ranked from

501 to 1000 by market capitalisation as at March 31, 2019.

Prof. Leena Chatterjee, age 63, is a PhD in

Organisational Psychology from IIT, Kanpur, and an MA in

Psychology from Delhi University. Prof. Chatterjee has been

teaching at IIM, Calcutta, for more than 30 years. She

teaches subjects l ike Organisational Behaviour,

Organisational Communication, Interpersonal Dynamics

and Group Development. She has received the Best

Teacher Award a number of times in her teaching career.

She has consulted for organisations like SBI Life,

Government of India, Department of Health. She has a

number of research publications on various aspects of

organisational culture and performance. She is currently

a Member on the Board of Governors of IIM, Calcutta.
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Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at

its Meeting (Serial No.15) held on January 29, 2019,

appointed Prof. Leena Chatterjee as an Additional Director

of the Company with effect from April 1, 2019, and further

resolved to propose a suitable resolution to the

shareholders at the 59th AGM of the Company to appoint

her as an Independent Director for a term of five

consecutive years from the date of the said AGM. She

holds office up to the date of the 59th Annual General

Meeting pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act,

2013, and Article 118 of the Articles of Association of the

Company. Prof. Leena Chatterjee is not disqualified

from being appointed as a Director in terms of

Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent in

writing to act as a Director of the Company.

The Company has received a Notice under

Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013, from a

Member proposing her candidature as a Director of the

Company. The Company has received a declaration

from Prof. Leena Chatterjee that she meets the

criteria of independence as prescribed under

sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under

Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Securities & Exchange

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In the opinion of the

Board, Prof. Leena Chatterjee fulfills the conditions for

appointment as an Independent Director as specified in

the Act and the Rules framed thereunder and she is

independent of the management.

Prof. Chatterjee is not a director of any other

Company. She does not hold any shares of

Hawkins Cookers Limited. She is not related to any Director

or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Prof. Chatterjee would be entitled to sitting fees for

attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors and

Committees thereof. In addition she would be entitled to

commission as determined each year by the Board of

Directors within the limits approved by the Members of

the Company for the Non-Executive Directors of the

Company.

Prof. Chatterjee is concerned and interested in the

resolution. The relatives of Prof. Leena Chatterjee may be

deemed to be concerned and interested in the resolution.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their

relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested in the

resolution.

The Board is of the view that Prof. Chatterjee

possesses appropriate skills, expertise, experience

and knowledge useful to the Company.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary

Resolution at Item No. 4 for your approval.

Item Nos. 5 to 9 of the Notice: Re-Appointment of

Independent Directors

Mr. J. M. Mukhi, Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji, Mr. Gerson Da Cunha,

General V. N. Sharma (Retd.) and Mr. E. A. Kshirsagar

were appointed as Independent Directors on the

Board of your Company by the Shareholders at the

54th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company

held on September 19, 2014, pursuant to the provisions

of Section 149 of the Act read with the Companies

(Appointment and Qualif ication of Directors)

Rules, 2014, and the erstwhile Clause 49 of the

Listing Agreement with the stock exchange. They hold

office as Independent Directors of the Company up to

September 18, 2019.

The Company has received declarations from each

of the five Directors, Mr. J. M. Mukhi, Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji,

Mr. Gerson Da Cunha, General V. N. Sharma (Retd.)

and Mr. E. A. Kshirsagar, that they meet the criteria of

independence as prescribed under Section 149 (6)

of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015. Further, the above Directors are not

disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms

of section 164 of the Act and have given their consent

in writing to act as Directors of the Company.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors

at its Meeting (Serial No.15) held on January 29, 2019,

has proposed the re-appointment of Mr. J. M. Mukhi,

Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji, Mr. Gerson Da Cunha,

General V. N. Sharma (Retd.) and Mr. E. A. Kshirsagar

as Independent Directors of the Company, not liable to

retire by rotation, to hold office for a second term of five

consecutive years on the Board of the Company from

September 19, 2019, to September 18, 2024.

In the opinion of the Board, the above mentioned

Directors fulfill the conditions for appointment as

Independent Directors as specified in the Act and the

Rules framed thereunder and they are independent of

the management. Brief resumes of the above mentioned

Directors are given hereinbelow:

Mr. J. M. Mukhi

Mr. J. M. Mukhi, age 91 years, was first appointed

as a Director on the Board of the Company on

December 6, 1976. He was an Independent Director in

terms of Clause 49 of the erstwhile Listing Agreement.

He was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company for a period of five years with effect from

September 19, 2014, under Section 149 of the Companies

Act, 2013, vide an Ordinary Resolution passed by the

Members of the Company at the 54th Annual General

Meeting of the Company held on September 19, 2014.
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Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the Members

was accorded at the 58th AGM of the Company by a

Special Resolution for the continuance of the Directorship

of Mr. Mukhi from April 1, 2019, up to the end of his current

term on September 18, 2019, since he had attained the

age of 75 years.

Mr. Mukhi was educated at the Universities of Bombay

and Cambridge and the London School of Economics.

He is a Barrister educated at the Inns of Court School of

Law in London and an Advocate in the Supreme Court of

India. He was once the Legal Adviser to the Ministry of

External Affairs in charge of India’s case against Portugal

in the World Court at The Hague, Chairman of the Legal

Committee of the International Commission in Vietnam

and Senior Counsel to the Monopolies Commission in

India. He was for many years Chairman of SAE India Ltd.

Mr. Mukhi is now not a director of any other Company.

He holds 5,345 shares of Hawkins Cookers Limited.

Mr. Mukhi is not related to any Director or Key Managerial

Personnel of the Company.

Mr. Mukhi had attended one out of the four Board

Meetings held in the year 2018-19.

During the year 2018-19, Mr. Mukhi was paid

sitt ing fees of Rs.0.75 lakhs and commission of

Rs.9.50 lakhs pertaining to the year 2017-18. For the

year 2018-19, commission proposed to be paid to

Mr. Mukhi is Rs. 11.13 lakhs.

Mr. Mukhi would be entitled to sitting fees for

attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors and

Committees thereof. In addition he would be entitled to

commission as determined each year by the Board of

Directors within the limits approved by the Members of

the Company for the Non-Executive Directors of the

Company.

The Board is of the view that the continuance of

Mr. Mukhi as an Independent Director would be a

great help to the Company because of his vast legal

experience and wisdom.

Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji

Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji, age 79 years, was first

appointed as a Director on the Board of the Company on

November 26, 1991. He was an Independent Director in

terms of Clause 49 of the erstwhile Listing Agreement.

He was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company for a period of five years with effect from

September 19, 2014, under Section 149 of the Companies

Act, 2013, vide an Ordinary Resolution passed by the

Members of the Company at the 54th Annual General

Meeting of the Company held on September 19, 2014.

Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the Members

was accorded at the 58th AGM of the Company by a

Special Resolution for the continuance of the Directorship

of Mr. Diwanji from April 1, 2019, up to the end of his current

term on September 18, 2019, since he had attained the

age of 75 years.

Mr. Diwanji is a Bachelor of Law. He is an

Advocate, Solicitor, Notary and a Senior Partner of

Messrs. Desai & Diwanji. He is a Director on the Boards of

Protos Engineering Co. Pvt. Ltd., Windmere Hospitality (India) Pvt. Ltd.,

Gem Photographic (India) Pvt. Ltd. and Kaira Can Company Ltd.

He does not hold membership of any Committees of the

Board of Directors of other companies. He holds 5,100 shares of

Hawkins Cookers Limited. He is not related to any Director or

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Mr. Diwanji had attended two out of the four Board

Meetings held in the year 2018-19.

During the year 2018-19, Mr. Diwanji was paid

sitting fees of Rs.6 lakhs and commission of Rs.9.50 lakhs

pertaining to the year 2017-18. For the year 2018-19,

commission proposed to be paid to Mr. Diwanji is

Rs. 11.13 lakhs.

Mr. Diwanji would be entitled to sitting fees for

attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors and

Committees thereof. In addition he would be entitled to

commission as determined each year by the Board of

Directors within the limits approved by the Members of

the Company for the Non-Executive Directors of the

Company.

It is the Board’s opinion that Mr. Diwanji ’s

continuance as an Independent Director would be

most helpful in view of his extensive knowledge of

Indian Corporate law and practice.

Mr. Gerson da Cunha

Mr. Gerson da Cunha, age 90 years, was first

appointed as a Director on the Board of the Company

on June 27, 1992. He was an Independent Director in

terms of Clause 49 of the erstwhile Listing Agreement.

He was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company for a period of five years with effect from

September 19, 2014, under Section 149 of the

Companies Act, 2013, vide an Ordinary Resolution

passed by the Members of the Company at the

54th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

September 19, 2014. Pursuant to the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, consent of the Members was

accorded at the 58th AGM of the Company by a Special

Resolution for the continuance of the Directorship of

Mr. Gerson da Cunha from April 1, 2019, up to the end of

his current term on September 18, 2019, since he had

attained the age of 75 years.
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Mr. Gerson da Cunha graduated from

St. Xavier ’s College, Mumbai. His professional career

started with Press Trust of India and moved on to Lintas

Limited of which he became the Chief Executive.

He worked with the United Nations Children Fund (UNICEF)

in Latin America and New York for nine years from 1980

and pioneered the use of advertising and marketing

concepts with UNICEF on issues like Maternal and

Child Health. He has served as Advisor, Communications,

in the Ministries of the Government of India of Civil Aviation

and Tourism, Information and Broadcasting and Health

and Family Welfare at various times. Mr. Gerson da Cunha

is a director of Medius India Services Private Limited.

He does not hold membership of any Committees of the

Board of Directors of other companies. He does not hold

any shares of the Company. He is not related to any

Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Mr. Gerson da Cunha had attended all the four Board

Meetings held in the year 2018-19.

During the year 2018-19, Mr. Gerson da Cunha

was paid sitting fees of Rs.8.00 lakhs and commission of

Rs.9.50 lakhs pertaining to the year 2017-18. For the

year 2018-19, commission proposed to be paid to

Mr. Gerson da Cunha is Rs. 11.13 lakhs.

Mr. Gerson da Cunha would be entitled to sitting

fees for attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors

and Committees thereof. In addition he would be

entitled to commission as determined each year by the

Board of Directors within the limits approved by the

Members of the Company for the Non-Executive

Directors of the Company.

It is the Board’s view that Mr. da Cunha’s experience

and excellence in social communication will continue to

be of great help to the Company.

General V. N. Sharma (Retd.)

General V. N. Sharma (Retd.), age 89 years, was first

appointed as a Director on the Board of the Company

on October 27, 1998. He was an Independent Director in

terms of Clause 49 of the erstwhile Listing Agreement.

He was appointed as an Independent Director of the

Company for a period of five years with effect from

September 19, 2014, under Section 149 of the

Companies Act, 2013, vide an Ordinary Resolution

passed by the Members of the Company at the

54th Annual General Meeting of the Company held

on September 19, 2014. Pursuant to the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, consent of the Members was accorded

at the 58th AGM of the Company by a Special Resolution

for the continuance of the Directorship of General Sharma

from April 1, 2019, up to the end of his current term on

September 18, 2019, since he had attained the age of

75 years.

General Sharma holds M. Phil in Military Studies.

He retired in 1990 from the Indian Army as Chief of

Army Staff. He was awarded the Param-Vishisht

Seva Medal (PVSM) in 1986. He served on the Local

Advisory Board of ABN Amro Bank for seven years.

General Sharma is not a director of any other Company.

He does not hold any shares of Hawkins Cookers Limited.

He is not related to any Director or Key Managerial

Personnel of the Company.

General Sharma had attended all the four Board

Meetings held in the year 2018-19.

During the year 2018-19, General Sharma was

paid sitting fees of Rs.3.75 lakhs and commission of

Rs.9.50 lakhs pertaining to the year 2017-18. For the

year 2018-19, commission proposed to be paid to

General Sharma is Rs. 11.13 lakhs.

General Sharma would be entitled to sitting fees

for attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors

and Committees thereof. In addition he would be

entitled to commission as determined each year by the

Board of Directors within the limits approved by the

Members of the Company for the Non-Executive Directors

of the Company.

It is the Board’s view that General Sharma’s vast

experience of men, leadership and affairs is of great

value to the Company.

Mr. E. A. Kshirsagar

Mr. E. A. Kshirsagar, age 77 years, was first appointed

as a Director on the Board of the Company with

effect from June 1, 2014. He was appointed as an

Independent Director of the Company for a period of

five years with effect from September 19, 2014, vide an

Ordinary Resolution passed by the Members of

the Company at the 54th Annual General Meeting of

the Company held on September 19, 2014. Pursuant

to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, consent of the Members

was accorded at the 58th AGM of the Company by a

Special Resolution for the continuance of the

Directorship of Mr. Kshirsagar from April 1, 2019, up to the

end of his current term on September 18, 2019, since he

had attained the age of 75 years.

Mr. Kshirsagar is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of England and Wales. He has had a

distinguished career of over 37 years with A. F. Ferguson and

Co. Mumbai, from which he retired in 2004 as the Senior

Partner in charge of the Management Consultancy Division.

He is a Director on the Board of Batliboi Ltd.,

JM Financial Ltd., Manappuram Finance Ltd., JM Financial

Products Ltd. and Manipal Global Education Services

Pvt. Ltd.
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Mr. Kshirsagar is a Member of the following Board

Committees of other companies:

Sr. Name of Name of Position held
No. the Company the Committee

1. Batliboi Limited Audit Committee Chairman

Nomination and Chairman
Remuneration

Committee

2. JM Financial Audit Committee Chairman

Limited Nomination and Member
Remuneration

Committee

3. JM Financial Audit Committee Chairman

Products Nomination and Member
Limited Remuneration

Committee

Corporate Social Chairman
Responsibility Committee

4. Manappuram Audit Committee Member

Finance Nomination and
Limited Remuneration Committee Member

Risk Management Committee Member

Mr. Kshirsagar does not hold any shares of Hawkins

Cookers Limited. He is not related to any Director or Key

Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Mr. Kshirsagar had attended all the four Board

Meetings held in the year 2018-19.

During the year 2018-19, Mr. Kshirsagar was

paid sitting fees of Rs.3.25 lakhs and commission of

Rs.9.50 lakhs pertaining to the year 2017-18. For the

year 2018-19, commission proposed to be paid to

Mr. Kshirsagar is Rs. 11.13 lakhs.

Mr. Kshirsagar would be entitled to sitting fees for

attending the Meetings of the Board of Directors and

Committees thereof. In addition he would be entitled to

commission as determined each year by the Board of

Directors within the limits approved by the Members of

the Company for the Non-Executive Directors of the

Company.

The Board believes that Mr. Kshirsagar’s experience

and insights into corporate accounts and management

are of considerable value to the Company.

General Note re. Special Resolutions for Item

Nos. 5 to 9 of the Notice

The above Directors, for their respective

appointments, are concerned and interested in the

Resolutions as set out at Item Nos. 5 to 9 of the Notice

and their respective relatives are deemed to be

concerned and interested in the said resolutions.

Save and except the above, none of the other Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and

their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested

in these Resolutions.

The Board, based on the performance evaluation

of the above five Independent Directors and the

recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee, considers that in view of the vast experience

and wisdom which these Directors possess, their

continued association would be of great benefit to the

Company and that it is desirable to continue to avail

of their services as Independent Directors.

The Board of Directors recommends the Special

Resolutions set out at Item Nos. 5 to 9 of the Notice for

your approval.

Item No.11 of the Notice: Re-Appointment of

Mr. Sudeep Yadav

Mr. Sudeep Yadav, 51 years of age, holds a B. Tech.

from IIT Delhi and a Post-Graduate Diploma in Business

Management from IIM Calcutta. Prior to joining the

Company he has worked with Citibank for 12 years and,

before that, with ANZ Grindlays & Standard Chartered for

9 years. His experience has been in Business Administration,

dealing with a wide variety of major corporations and

various banking operations. His previous job was Managing

Director of Citi Transaction Services in India. At the same

time, Mr. Yadav also served as a Director on the Board of

National Payments Corporation of India which is a

not-for-profit Company under Section 25 of the

Companies Act, 1956, sponsored by the RBI and

promoted by major banks in India including public

sector banks. Mr. Yadav was first appointed as a

Director of the Company with effect from July 17, 2013.

He was appointed as a Whole time Director designated

as Executive Director-Finance & Administration (Designate)

with effect from July 22, 2013. He was redesignated as

Executive Director-Finance & Administration with effect

from November 12, 2013. He was given the additional

designation of Chief Financial Officer effective

May 27, 2014. He was re-elected as Executive Director-

Finance & Administration in 2016. Mr. Yadav ’s

appointment as Executive Director-Finance and

Administration of your Company comes to an end on

September 30, 2019.

Mr. Yadav had attended all the four Board

Meetings held in the year 2018-19. The total remuneration

of Mr. Yadav for the year 2018-19 was Rs. 257.72 lakhs.

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee the Board of Directors at

its Meeting (Serial No.16) held on May 29, 2019, decided

that it is in the interest of your Company to re-appoint

Mr. Yadav in his present position for a period of three

years from October 1, 2019, on revised terms, subject to

your approval.
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The main terms and conditions of the

re-appointment of Mr. Sudeep Yadav as Executive Director

– Finance & Administration are summarised as follows:

Salary: Rs. 4,00,000 per month. Commission on net

profits: at the rate of 2.5%. Provident Fund/Superannuation/

Annuity Fund/Pension Fund contributions: as per the Rules

of the Company. Gratuity: as per the Rules of the

Company, not exceeding half a month’s salary for each

completed year of service. Company owned/leased

accommodation may be provided for which 10% of the

salary to be deducted; in case no accommodation is

provided, House Rent Allowance at the rate of 60% of his

salary. Home Appliances to be provided by the Company

as per the Company’s Rules. Medical expenses incurred

by Mr. Yadav and his family to be borne by the Company;

medical insurance for Mr. Yadav and his family may be

arranged by the Company at its cost – the Company to

use such insurance to defray expenses covered by it.

Leave Travel Allowance: Rs.80,000 per annum. Clubs:

Corporate membership of up to two clubs the fees of

which shall be paid by the Company. Personal Accident

Insurance at an annual premium not exceeding

Rs.20,000. Life Insurance at an annual premium not

exceeding Rs.50,000 or the benefit of Life Insurance for a

sum assured of up to Rs.2 crores as part of the group

insurance policy taken by the Company. Car and driver:

for business and personal use. Telephone and Internet:

free at residence, also one Mobile connection to be

provided (long distance personal calls excluded). Leave

as per the rules of the Company; encashment of leave

at the end of the tenure. Total remuneration is subject to

an overall ceiling of 4% of the net profits of the Company

computed as per Section 198 of the Companies

Act, 2013. In case of inadequate or no profits, salary and

perquisites to be limited to Rs.10,00,000 per month

excluding terminal benefits to the extent permitted under

Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Yadav is

required to maintain confidentiality of company

information and not to be involved directly or indirectly in

any competitive business. The designation of and

allocation of work to Mr. Yadav may be altered by the Board

without affecting any other term or condition. Agreement

is terminable by three months’ notice given by either party.

Ceasing of employment causes end of Wholetime

Directorship. In case of dispute, arbitration under The

Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996, is mandatory.

Mr. Yadav is not disqualified from being appointed

as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies

Act, 2013, or under any other provisions of the said Act.

Mr. Yadav is not a Director of any other Company.

He holds 101 shares in the Company. He is a son-in-law

of Mr. Brahm Vasudeva, Chairman of the Board of Directors

of the Company. He is not related to any other Director or

Key Managerial Personnel of the Company.

A copy of the Agreement between the Company

and Mr. Sudeep Yadav dated June 11, 2019, is available

for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of

the Company between 10.00 am and 1.00 pm on all

working days of the Company and will also be kept open

at the venue of the 59th AGM till the conclusion of the

said AGM.

Mr. Sudeep Yadav and Mr. Brahm Vasudeva,

Directors, are concerned and interested in this resolution

and their relatives may be deemed to be concerned

and interested in the resolution. Save and except the

above, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any

way, concerned or interested in the resolution.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary

Resolution at Item No. 11 for your approval.

Item No. 12 of the Notice: Acceptance of Fixed Deposits.

The Company has a Fixed Deposit Scheme, pursuant

to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, read with

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014,

wherein it accepts unsecured deposits from the Members

of the Company and the Public. The said scheme is valid

up to the date of this 59th Annual General Meeting.

Along with complying with the conditions stated in

Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, approval

of the shareholders is required for accepting deposits from

the Members and the Public within the limits prescribed under

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

The Board of Directors at its Meeting (Serial No.16)

held on May 29, 2019, has resolved to recommend to

the Shareholders the acceptance of Fixed Deposits from

the Members and the Public pursuant to Sections 73 and

76 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. The Fixed Deposit

Scheme would be credit rated on an annual basis as

required under the said Act read with the said Rules. It is

proposed to authorise the Board to finalise the terms of

the Fixed Deposit Scheme and to do such other acts and

deeds as may be necessary or incidental thereto.

None of the Directors of the Company are in any

way concerned or interested in the said resolution. Key

Managerial Personnel, Directors’ Relatives and Relatives

of Key Managerial Personnel are eligible to the benefits

of the Scheme on the same terms and at the same rates

as are applicable to the Members and the Public.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution at

Item No. 12 for your approval.
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10. Voting through electronic means

10.1. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of

the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide

to Members the facility to exercise their right to vote on

resolutions proposed to be considered at the

59th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by remote e-voting

and the business may be transacted through remote

e-voting services provided by National Securities

Depository Limited (NSDL). The instructions for e-voting

are as under:

Step 1: Log-in to the NSDL e-voting system at

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on the NSDL

e-voting system.

A. Details in respect of Step 1 to log-in to the NSDL

e-voting system are given below:

1. Launch an Internet browser and open

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile.

2. Click on the icon “Login” which is available under

‘Shareholders’ section.

3. A new screen will open. Enter your User ID, your

Password and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

4. Your User ID details are given below:

a) For Members who hold shares in demat

account with NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by

8 Digit Client ID.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat

account with CDSL: 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form:

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered

with the company.

5. Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-voting, then

you can use your existing password to login and cast

your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-voting system for the

first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’

which was communicated to you as under:

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat

account or with the Company, your ‘initial password’

is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the

email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox.

Open the email and open the attachment i.e.

‘Hawkins Cookers e-Voting.pdf ’ file. The password

to open the said PDF file is your 8 digit client ID for

NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL

account or folio number for shares held in physical

form. The said PDF file contains your ‘User ID’ and

your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, your User ID

and initial password are mentioned at the bottom

of the Attendance Slip separately provided with this

Annual Report.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received

the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/ Password?”

(If you are holding shares in your demat account

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding

shares in physical mode) option available on

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by

aforesaid two options, you can send a request at

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account

number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your

registered address.

7. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need

to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force

you to change your password.

8. Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password)

based login for casting the votes on the e-voting system

of NSDL.

9. After entering your password, tick on Agree to

“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

10. Click on “Login” button. Home page of e-voting will

open.

Note: Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices

i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/

with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on

e-voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your

vote electronically.

B. Details in respect of Step 2 to cast your vote

electronically on NSDL e-voting system are given below:

1. Click on e-voting. Then, click on “Active Voting Cycles”.

2. Select “EVEN” of Hawkins Cookers Limited.

3. Now you are ready for remote e-voting as the Voting

page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e.

assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for

which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit”

and also “Confirm” when prompted.
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5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast

successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by

you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation

page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you

will not be allowed to modify your vote.

C. General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals,

HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/

Authority letter, along with attested specimen signature

of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized

to vote, to the Scrutinizer by an e-mail to

scrutinizer@hawkinscookers.com with a copy marked to

evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your

password with any other person and take utmost care to

keep your password confidential. Login to the

e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful

attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,

you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/

Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently

Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user

manual for Shareholders available at the download

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.:

1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

10.2. The voting rights of the Members in respect of remote

e-voting shall be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by them as on the cut-off date (record date)

of July 30, 2019. Members are eligible to cast their

vote electronically only if they are holding shares as on

that date.

10.3. The remote e-voting period shall commence at

9:00 am on Friday, August 2, 2019, and will end at

5:00 pm on Monday, August 5, 2019. The remote

e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL at 5:00 pm

on August 5, 2019.

10.4. The facility for voting through poll paper shall also

be made available at the AGM. Members attending the

meeting, who have not already cast their vote by remote

e-voting shall be able to exercise their right to vote at the

meeting through poll paper.

10.5. Members who have cast their vote by remote

e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the meeting,

but shall not be entitled to vote again at the AGM.

10.6. Any person who acquires shares of the Company

and becomes a Member of the Company after the

dispatch of the AGM Notice and holds shares as on the

cut-off-date, that is, July 30, 2019, may obtain the User ID

and Password by sending a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote

e-voting then you can use your existing User ID and

Password for casting your vote. If you have forgotten your

password, you may reset your password by using

“Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset

Password?” options available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

10.7. Mrs. Jayshree S. Joshi, Company Secretary in

Practice (Membership No. F1451), has been appointed

as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting process

and also the polling at the AGM suitably.

10.8. The results shall be declared not later than

forty-eight hours from the conclusion of the AGM. The

results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall

be placed on the Company ’s website

www.hawkinscookers.com and on the website of NSDL

www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the results are

declared and will simultaneously be forwarded to BSE Ltd.,

where the shares of the Company are listed and shall

be displayed at the Registered Office of the Company.

11. Dividends for the financial years ended

March 31, 2012, and thereafter which remain unclaimed

for a period of seven years will be transferred to the

‘INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND’ (IEPF) of the

Central Government. Members who have not encashed

their dividend warrant(s) for the financial year ended

March 31, 2012, or thereafter are requested to contact

the Company or the Company’s Share Transfer Agent,

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd., with the relevant details on or

before August 24, 2019, to duly claim their said dividend(s).

Members may further note that, pursuant to Section 124

of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Investor

Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting,

Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, all Shares on which

dividend remains unclaimed for 7 (seven) consecutive

years or more are liable to be transferred to the IEPF.

Members are further advised that in terms of applicable

provisions of the Act and the IEPF Rules, Unclaimed

Dividends and Shares transferred to the IEPF can be

claimed from the Fund after following the process

prescribed in the said Rules.

By Order of the Board

Mumbai Hutoxi Bhesania

July 3, 2019 Company Secretary
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All % Gtowtt» tlguret are ovet tbelr prevtoua yea11. 1 Clo~e = 10 M I lion. 

2014·15 2015·16 2016·17 2017-18 2018-19 

sates 469 
% Growth 12.5 

Note 1 

Profit After Tax 33.04 
% Growth -13.3 

Note2 

Dividend Rs. 4S 
~Share 
of Rs. 10 

Nof83 

487 
3.8 

40.90 
23.8 

Rs.60 

512 
5.3 

47.42 
15.9 

RI. 70 

553 
7.9 

48.68 
2.6 

Rs. 70 

653 
18.1 

54.22 
11.4 

Rs.80 

Notes: 1. Sales a,. shown ~live of~ cutv and lnc:Mtve of other O,.allng lrlcon.­
to I'YICIDthltn camparal*. 

2. Profit After lax tlgurM en Cll per lnd AS. 

3. 1be Dhldend for fh• year 2018-19 Ill Mlfect to the CIPPI'CMll ot 1M ShwetiOidert 
at 1M 69th N/IM. 



HAWKINS COOKERS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 

CONTENTS PAGE 

Five New Products Launched in this Year Front Cover 

Financial Performance: A Five-Year Summary Inside Front Cover 

Directors• Report 2 

Corporate Governance Report 16 

Auditors• Report 22 

Balance Sheet 30 

statement of Profit & Loss 31 

Statement of Changes in Equi1y 32 

Statement of Cash Flows 33 

Notes Forming part of the Financial Statements 34 

A New TV Commercial for the Inside Back Cover 
Future Pressure Cooker 

A Well-Designed Package Adds to Saleabili1y Back Cover 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

J. M. Mukhi Shishir K. Diwanji Gerson da Cunha Gen. V. N. Sharma (Retd.) 

E. A. Kshirsagar Susan M. Vasudeva Ravi Kant Leena Chatterjee 

S. Dutta Choudhury Sudeep Yadav Brahm Vasudeva 
VICE·CHAIRMAN lt CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EXECUTM DIRECTOR- FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION CHAIRMAN 

COMPANY SECRETARY 

Hutoxi Bhesania 

REGISTERED OFFICE 

Maker Tower F 101, Cuffe Parade, 
Mumbal 400 005 India 

CIN: L28997MH1959PLC011304 
Tel: 2218 66 07 Fax: 2218 11 90 

email: ho@hawkinscookers.com 

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT 

Link lntime India Pvt. Ltd., 
C-1 01 , 24 7 Park, L. B. Shastri Marg, 

Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400 083 
Tel: 491 8 62 70 Fax: 4918 60 60 

email: hawkins.coenq@linkintime.co.in 

AUDITORS 

Kalyaniwalla & Mistry LLP 

SOLICITORS 

Crawford Bayley & Co. 

BANKERS 

Bank of Baroda (erstwhile Dena Bank) 
Punjab National Bank 
The Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited 
Corporation Bank 

www.hawkinscookers.com 

CD 



DIRECTORs• REPORT TO SHAREHOLDERS 

We have tne honour to present our Fifly-Nintn Annual 

Report and Audited Statement of Accounts for 1he year ended 

March 31. 2019. 

2018-19 Operations: Main Results 

We are pleased to report excellent results. 

Once again, sales are the highest ever. Revenue from 

operations In 2018-19 was Rs. 652.84 crores (up 17.3% over 

the previous year). 

This year, profits are also tne highest ever. Profit before 

tax was Rs. 82.34 crores (11 .6% hlghertnan tne previous year). 

Net profit after tax was Rs. 54.22 crores (11 .4% higher than 

the previous year). 

Management Discussion and Analysis 

We operate in the market consisting of Pressure 

Cookers and Cookware. The industry structure is quite 

competitive with both small-scale and organized sector units. 

In 2018-19, we have successfully Increased our 

production to effectively meet enhanced demand. We have 

well created demand by the use of advertising In television 

and the press. We have In the year 2018-19 launched new 

advertising for Futuro Pressure Cookers that has given us 

very good results. We have diversified into the stainless steel 

Cookware market with the T-Pan. 

Our permanent employees as on April 1, 2018, were 

676 and as on March 31, 2019, were 645 through normal 

attrition. The morale of our employees at all locations Is 

high and lndust~al relations were and are normal. We well 

appreciate 1he contribution of our employees to the successful 

working of your Company. 

Net profft after tax as a percentage of net sales In 

2018-19 was 8.3% as against 8. 7% In 2017-18. 

The average shareholders' fundS/net worth grew to 

Rs. 114.22 crores vs. Rs. 108.25 crores in 2017-18. The net 

retum after tax on shareholders' fundS/net wortn (including tne 

amount of tne proposed dMdend and tne tax thereon) was 

47% (in 2017-18: 45%). This is because of the better results 

produced in 2018-19. 

Cash flow during the year was comfortable. 

Cash and cash equivalents plus balances with banks on 

deposit accounts as on March 31. 2019, were Rs. 30.04 

crores (previous year: Rs. 80.01 crores). We have plans to u1ilise 

these funds appropriately (as will be explained later in 

this report). 

We have taken a modest price increase of about 

2.5% effective Aprill. 2019. 

Control Syatem1 

In our judgment. the Company has adequate 

financial and administrative systems and controls and an 

effective internal audit function. 

Risks and Concerns 

All foreseeable mks 1hat the Company may encounter 

and concerns have been addressed In a documented 

Risk Management Framework which Is reviewed by the Board 

from time to time. 

OpportuniHes and Threats 

The demand for our brands augurs well for the future 

of the Company. 

We have done well with the adoption of GST because 

of the tendency of the trade under GST to move towards 

companies with straight and transparent billing practices. 

Management continues to diligently watch cost 

increase trends and seeks effective cost controls and 

necessary adjustment in prices as needed from time to time. 

Aluminium prices are subdued currently- which is beneficial 

for the Company. 

Outlook 

We believe the ouHook for our business is excellent. In 

tnis year, we have further strengtnened tne good reputation 

we have amongst our consumers and traders, associates 

and vendors. We expect to continue to Increase our sales 

and profits. 

All forward-looking statements in our report are based 

on our assessments and judgments exercised in good faith at 

tnis time. Of course. actual developments and/or results may 

differ from our present anticipation. 

2018-19 Operations: other Aspects 

The value of exports at Rs. 3 7. 79 crores In 20 18-19 

was up 8. 7% over tne previous year. Foreign Exchange used 

In 2018-19 was Rs.5.96 crores (Rs. 1 .30 crores In the previous 

year). 

As our Research & Development Unit Is recognised 

by the Department of Sclentmc and Industrial Research, our 

expenditure on R&D In 20 18-19 Is eligible for tne benefit of 

deduct1blllty of expenses at the rate of 150% for tne purpose 

of 1he computation of Income tax subject to 1he necessary 



approvals by the Department of Scientific and Industrial 

Research and the Income Tax Department. The expenditure 

on Research & Development In 2018-19 was Rs.3.80 crores, 

2. 9% higher than the previous year. Required details are given 

in Appendix I. 

Efforts continue in our factories and offices to save 

energy wherever possible. 

The required details of Fixed Deposits taken under 

Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, are as follows: 

(a) Amount accepted during the year: Rs. 5. 7 4 crores. 

(b) Amount remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the 

end of the year: Nil. 

(c) Default In repayment of deposits or payment of 

interest thereon: Nil. 

Appropriations and Dividend 

Out of the amount available for appropriation of 

Rs. 67.31 crores (previous year: Rs. 60.52 crores). we propose: 

• Rs. 2.00 crores transfer to General Reserve (previous 

year: Rs. 2.00 crores) and 

• Rs. 65.31 crores as surplus carried to the Balance 

Sheet (previous year: Rs. 58.52 crores). 

We are pleased to recommend Rupees Eighty 

as dividend per Equity Share of Rs. 1 0 (previous year: 

Rupees Seventy per Share). Our recommendation takes 

into account the profitability, the circumstances and the 

requirements of the business. 

Directors' Responsibility Statement 

The Board confirms that: 

1 . The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care 

for the maintenance of adequate accounting records In 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013, 

for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detect1ng fraud and other Irregularities. 

2. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed and 

proper explanation given relating to material departures. if 

any. The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a 

going-concern basis. 

3. The Directors have selected such accounting policies 

and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 

Company for that period. 

Directors' Report (Continued) 

4. Based on the framework of the internal financial 

controls and compliance systems established and maintained 

by the Company. the work performed by the Internal. Statutory 

and Secreta~al Auditors, Including audit of the Internal nnanclal 

controls over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors. and 

the reviews performed by the Management and the relevant 

Board Committees. including the Audit Committee. the 

Board Is of the opinion that the Company's Internal financial 

controls were adequate and effective during the financial 

year 2018-19. 

5. The Directors have devised proper systems that are 

adequate and operating effectively to ensure compliance 

with the provisions of all applicable laws. 

Code of Conduct 

The Board has formulated a Corporate Governance 

Code of Conduct for all the Directors of the Board and 

the Senior Managers of the Company. This Code is 

available on the webslte of the Company. All Directors and 

Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance 

with the Code. A declaration to this effect signed by the 

Vice-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company 

appears elsewhere in this Annual Report. 

Sexual Harassment or Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints 

Committee at each of the five locations of the Company 

under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 201 3, to redress 

complaints received regarding sexual harassment. In the year 

2018-19, no case of sexual harassment of women was filed 

under the said Act. 

Corporate Governance 

A separate section on Corporate Governance forms 

part of our Report. A certtncate has been received from the 

Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of 

the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated 

under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulat1ons, 2015. Both appear elsewhere In 

the Annual Report. 

Directors 

At the Board Meeting (Serial No. 15) held on 

January 29, 2019, Prof. Leena Chatte~ee has been appointed 

as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 

Ap~l 1, 2019, to hold otnce upto the 59th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company. A resolution is proposed to the 

shareholders for her appointment as an Independent Director. 

0 
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Directors' Report (Continued) 

Prof. Chatte~ee has given a written declaraHon that 

she meets the criteria of independence as laid down under 

Section 149[6) of the Companies Act 2013. and Regulation 

16(1 )[b) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) RegulaHons. 2015. 

All the six Independent Directors, namely, 

Mr. J. M. Mukhi, Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji, Mr. Gerson do Cunha. 

General V. N. Sharma (Retd.). Mr. E. A. Kshirsagar and 

Mr. Ravi Kant have given written declarations that they meet 

the criteria of Independence as laid down under Section 

149[6) of the Companies Act. 2013, and regulation 16[1) 

(b) of SEBI (Listing ObllgaHons and Disclosure Requirements) 

RegulaHons. 2015. 

Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury, Vice-Chairman and 

Chief Executive Officer, retires by rotation as a Director at 

the 59th AGM of the Company and, being eligible. offers 

himself for re-appointment for which the Board has resolved 

to recommend to the shareholders a suitable resolution. 

The present tenure of the following five 

Independent Directors, Mr. J. M. Mukhi, Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji, 

Mr. Gerson da Cunha. General V. N. Sharma (Retd.) and 

Mr. E. A. Kshlrsagar will expire on September 18, 2019. 

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. the Board at its Meeting 

(Serial No. 15) held on January 29, 2019. approved and 

decided to recommend to the shareholders suitable 

resolulions for their re-appointments for a second term of five 

years with effect from September 19. 2019. 

The present tenures of Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury. 

Vice-Chairman and Managing Director designated as 

Chief Executive Officer. and Mr. Sudeep Yadav. Executive 

Director-Finance and Administration, will expire on 

September 30, 2019. The Board at Its Meeting [Serial No.16) 

held on May 29, 2019, approved and resolved to recommend 

to the shareholders suitable resolutions for the re-appointments 

of Mr. Dutta Choudhury as Vice-Chairman and Managing 

Director designated as Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Yadav 

as Executive Director-Finance and Administration. for a further 

period of three years each with effect from October 1. 2019, 

on revised terms which are stated In the Notice to Shareholders 

for the 59th AGM of the Company. 

At the Board Meeting [Serial No. 16) the 

Chief Executive Officer made a presentation to the 

Independent Directors to update them on the Company's 

operations, products and marketing policies. The required 

details of the Independent Directors' Familiarization Programs 

are available at https://WWW.hawldnscookers.com/ldfp. 

Auditors 

M/s. Kalyaniwalla & Mlstry LLP (Firm Registration 

No. 1 04607W!'N1 00166). Chartered Accountants. have been 

appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 

57th Annual General Meeting held on August 2. 2017, for an 

initial term of five years from the conclusion of the 57th Annual 

General Meeting till the conclusion of the 62nd Annual General 

Meeting of the Company, subject to the raHficaHon of their 

appointment by Members at every Annual General Meeting 

till the 61 st Annual General Meeting. at such remuneration 

as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors 

of the Company and the Statutory Auditors. Pursuant to 

the amendments to Section 139 of the Companies Act 

2013, by the Companies Amendment Act. 2017, effecttve 

May 7, 20 1 8, the req ulrement of the ratification of their 

appointment by the Members has been withdrawn. 

Secretarial Audit 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the 

Companies Act. 2013, the Company had appointed 

M/s. Jayshree Dagli & Associates. Company Secretaries in 

Practice, to undertake the secretarial audit of the Company 

for the year 201 8-19. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed 

as Appendix 11. 

Cost Records and Cost Audit 

Maintenance of Cost Records and requirement of 

Cost Audit as presc~bed under the provisions of Section 148(1) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to our Company. 

Extract of Annual Return In Fonn MGT-9 
(Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

Given in Appendix Ill are the required details in the 

following seven sections: 

I. Registration and Other Details 
11. Principal Business Activities of the Company 

Ill. Particulars of Holding. Subsidiary and Associate 
Companies 
1'/. Shareholdlng Pattem 

V. Indebtedness 
VI. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial 

Personnel 

VII. PenaiHeS/Punishment/Compounding of Offences 

The said details are also available on the Company's 

website at https://WWW.hawldnscookers.com/mgt-9. 

Contracts or Arrangements wHh Related Parties 

All related party transactions during the year were 

on arm's length basis and were not material as per the 

Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company. 



Corporate Social ~ponllblllty 

The Company has selected a protect called Improving 

the Health of WOmen and Children by Cutting IndOOr Air 

Pollution with Pressure Cooking. After the successful pilot 

proJect conducted by the Company Hself In a few villages 

In the Jalna and Ahmednagar districts of Maharashtra In 

2016-17, the Company then partnered with a NGO, Bhaglrcth 

Gramvlkas Pratlshthan (BGP), for lmplemen1fng the sold proJect 

In the Slndhudurg district of Maharashtra. The village women 

are explained hoW they could reduce their and their children's 

exposure to Indoor Air PolluHon by the use of Pressure Cookers 

-with live demonstrations and pressure cookers being offered 

to the villagers by BGP at a 50% discount on 1he MRP. 

The Company has spent Rs.13.30 lakhs on the sold 

CSR proJect (Rs. 2.07 lakhs previous year). However, since the 

proJect requires extremeiV complex operattons such as: 

• training, mottvatlon and supervision of demonstrators, 

• loglsttcs fat' the supply of pressure cookals to villages 

In a remote dlsfltct In R.Jrol MoharashtrQ. 

• co-ordination with and motivation of BGP which Is 

funded by various third parties 

• and the requirement to prepare wrttten and llustrated 

material to explain to villagers In Marcthl the beneflfs 

of pressure cooking In terms of fast cooking, fuel and 

money saving and saving of mothers and toddlers from 

smoke Inhalation (•lndoor-polluHon"), 

the Company could not spend all of the Rs.1 .32 crores on 

ac1tvlttes under the Corporate Social Responsibility In the year 

ended March 31,2019. 

The Company Is In discussions With other NGOs who 

are reviewing our model for acceptability and the Company 

expects to scale up the lmplementallon of the Projeetth~ 

BGP and other Implementation Partners during 2019-20. 

In addiHon to the foregoing Information on CSR, the 

required Annual Report on CSR Is given os Appendix IV. 

Directors' Performance Evaluatton 

The performance evaluation of each Director of the 

Board was carried out by 1he Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee at its adjOUmed Meeting (Serial No. 9) held on 
June 4, 2019, as per the crltefla set by tt ea1Jer. The sad crltefla 

are Included In the Corporate Governance Report enclosed 

herewith. The perfolmance evaluation of the non-Independent 

Directors. the Board as a whole and the Chakman of the Board 
was carried out by the Independent Directors atthefr separate 

meeting held on June 4, 2019. 

The Board of Directors at its adjourned Meeting 

(Senal No.16) hefd on June 4. 2019. reviewed the reports of 

Directors' Report (ConHnued) 

evaluation recelv9d from the Nomination and Remuneration 

Commmee and the Independent Directors and also the 

func11onlng of the Committees of the Board and camed out 

the evaluation of the Board as a whole, the Committees of 

tha Board and each Director and found the performance of 

tha Board. the Commntees and all tha lndMdual Directors to 

be sattsfactory. 

Remuneration Policy 

On the recommendation of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee, the Board has framed a 

remunerat1on policy for all employees of the Company 

Including senior management and the Directors. The 

remuneration policy of the Company Is designed to attract, 

mot1vate and retain suitable manpower In a compettttve 

marlcet. The remuneration package for each person Is 

designed keeping a balance between fixed remuneration 

and protlt and performance-linked IncentiVes In order to 

achieve corporate pefformance targets. The policy Is aligned 

With the Company's mission. which states: "'ur single-minded 

determination to please customers drives 1he kind of people 

we employ and promote, the lnvestmen1s we make and the 

resuHs we produce." 

The RemuneraHon Policy Is placed at the Company's 

webslte at https:/twww.hawklnscookers.com/download/ 
RemuneratlonPollcy.pdf. The Board affirms that all the 

remunerations ore as per the RemuneraHon Policy of 1he 

Company. Information os per Section 197 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, Is given In Appendix V. 

VIgil Mechanism 

Tha Company has an established VIgil Mechanism/ 

Whls11e Blower Policy tor Directors and employees to report 

concems or grievances including unethical behaviour, 

fraud or violation of the Company's Corporate Govemance 

Code of Conduct. The Policy was amended in line with the 

SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment) Regulalions.. 

2018, to include reporting of instances of leak of Unpublished 

Prtce Sansitivelnfolmalion. 1ha autholffyforthe implementation 

of the policy rests with the Executive Director-Finance & 
Administration under the overall supervision of the Audit 

Committee of tha Board. 

Mumbai 
June 28,2019 

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

BRAHM VASUDEVA 
CHAIRMAN 



Dlrecfor1' Report (ConHnued) 

Appendix I 

Research 8t Development 

Specific areos in Vllhich R&D efforts have been carried 
out: R&D In materials, machines, prOCG6S9S and de&lgns of 
components and products In order to lmprow the functioning 
and durct>lllty of prOducts. to produce (Je<lter fuel economies 
and to hlprovethe safefy and convenience of the users of the 
prOducts. Bene1tls deriVed as a re&Ult: launch of new prOducts 
plus design and quality lmprowment/costred.lctlon In exlstng 
products. Future plan of action: we intend to support the 
R&D Centre and the Test Kitchen to meet corporate obJectiVeS 
for quality Improvement. cost reduction. Introduction of 

Appendix 11 

new products and consumer service and S\lpport. Capital 
expenditure on R&:D: Rs. 0.20 crores (previous year: 
Rs. 0.02 crores). Recurring expenditure: Rs. 3.60 crores. 0.6% 
of the total tu mover (previous year: Rs. 3.68 crores. 0. 7%). 

Efforts made tor technology absorpffon, adaptaffon 
and Innovation: the Company has relied upon Internal 
generat1on. No technology has been Imported for the 
last three years. As on April 1, 2019, there were 40 valid 
patents and design reglstraffons In force. Benents dertved: as 
descr1bed aboVe. 

Secretarial Auditor's Report 
To 1he Members of Hawklns Cookers Umlted 

Our report of even date Is to be read along With this 
letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records Is the 
responsibility of the management of the company. Our 
responsibility Is to express an opinion on these secretarial 
records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and 
processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about fhe correctness of the contents of the 
Secretarial records. The ve~flcaffon was done on test check 
basis to ensure that correct feels are reflected In secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practtces we 
folloWed prO\IIde a raosord)le basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and 
~ropdateness of financial records and Books of Acoounts 
of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the 
Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulaflons and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of provisions of corporate and 
other applicable laws, rules, regulations. standards Is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the ve~flcaflon of procedures on test check. basis. 

6. lhe Secreta~al Audit Report Is nelthef a1 assurance 
as to the future viability of the compony nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness wHh which the management has conducted 
1he affairs of 1he Company. 

For JAYSHREE DAGLI 8t ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

~~.~~~ 
Jayshree S. Joshl 

29th May; 2019 F.C.$.1451 C.P.487 

Form No. MR-3: Secretarial Audit Report for the Rnanclal Year Ended 31st March. 2019 
(Pursuant to sect1on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of 
the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by 
HAWKINS COOKERS LIMITED (hereinafter called 
"the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted In a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory c:orT¥>(1ances and expressing 

our opinion thet'eon. 

Based on our verlllcal1on of the Company's books, 
papers. minutes books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company and also the 
Information provided by the Company, Its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that In our opinion, fhe 

Company has. during the audit parted covering the financial 
year ended on 31" March, 2019 complied With the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism 
In place to the extent, In the manner and subject to fhe 
reporting made hereinafter: 



(A) We hove examined the books. pope!S, minutes books. 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by HAWICINS COOKERS LIMITED ("the Company") for the 
financial year ended on 31• March. 2019 according to 1he 
provisions of: 

1. lhe Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) & the Rules 
made there under to the extent applicable; and circulors. 
noftflcatlons, clarifications, Removal of Difficulties Orda!S or 
such other relevant statutory mctertal Issued by Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs from ffme to flme; 

2. lheSecurttles Contrac1s (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') 
and the Rules mode there under as amended; 

3. The Depositolies Act, 1996 end the Regulations end 
Bye-lows framed the«;) under os amended: 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Pet, 1999 and the 
Rules end Regulations made there under as on date to 1he 
extent applicable; 

5. The following Regulal1ons and Guidelines prescr1bed 
under the Securffies end Exchange Board of India h::t, 1992 
('SEBI Acf):-

(c)lhe Securities and Exchange Board of lncia (St.bstcnllcl 
Acquisition of Shores and Takeovers) Regulations. 2011 as 
emended: 

(b)lhe Securtt1es ald ExchCDJe Board of India (Prohlb!Hon 
of Insider Trading) Regulalions, 2015 end ciiCularsl guideline6 
Issued thereunder, as emended; 

(c) lhe SeclJitles atd Exchange Board of India (Registrars 
to on Issue and Shore Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, as 
emended regcJrdlng1heCompanlesActcnc:l dacllng wtlhcllent; 

(d) The Securmes and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations end Disclosure Reqlfimenls) RegUations. 2015, end 
The Secultles end Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Re<J,Jl'ements) (Amenci'nent) Reg\Jallons. 2018. 
to the extent appllccble for the veer under Audit. 

6. Based on the nature of business acffllltles of the 
Company, the following specific Pcnr/Laws/Rules,IRegulal1ons 
ore applicable to the Company: 

(a) Environment (ProtectiOn) Pet. 1981 
(b) Air (Prevention and Control of Polluffon) Pet, 1981 
(c) Water (Preven11on end Control of Pollut1on) Act. 197 4 
(d) Hazardous Wastes (Management end Handling) 
Rules, 1969 
(e) Labour Lam to the extent applicable 

(B) We hove also examined compliance 1Ntth the applicable 
clauses of the Secretarial Standards tor Board Mee1fngs (SS- 1) 

end for General Meetings (SS- 2). 

1t may please be noted that the compliance of 
applicable mnck:illaws lnclu<*lg Direct end Indirect Tax Laws; 
ma..,tenance of Flnandal Records and Books of Accounts etc. 
by the Company has not been reviewed by us for the purpose 
of this Audit since the some has been subJect matter of revieW 
by the statutory Auditors ancVor other designated professionals. 
Further, we haVe also relied~ the certificates/reports/legal 
opinions, as the case rT'IOI be, Issued bv the statutory Audltols 
ancVor other de6lgnated professlonas, wherever applicable. 

Appenclx 11 of the Directors' Report (ConHnued) 

During the year under review, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of 1he Ac1s, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines. Standards. etc. as menffoned above. 

During the year under review, the provisions of the 
toloY.1ng Regulations (os enumerated In the prescr1bed format 
of Form MR-3) were not appllcoble to the Company: 

(0 The Securilies end Exchange Board of India (Delisting 
of Equity Shares) Regulaltons, 2009 as amended; 

(IQ 1he Securtlles and Exchange Board of India (Buybac:k 
of Securilies) Regulations, 2018, as amended; 

(Ill) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulal1ons, 2016 
as amended; 

(Ill) The Securtlles and Exchange Board of India (Issue 
and Usffng of Debt Securtlles) Regulations, 2006 as amended; 

M The Securtlles end Exchatge Board of India (Employee 
Stock Opllon Scheme and Employee stock PIJ'Chase Scheme) 

Guidelines. 1999 atd The Secu111es and Exchange Board of India 
(ShcreBased E~ Benefits), ~lotions. 2014 as emended: 

We fUrther report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company Is duly 
constituted wtth proper balance of Executive Directors. 
Non-Execufflle Directors end Independent Directors. There 
was no change In the composlllon of the Board of Directors 
duri'lg the year l.l'1der review. However. the Board at ifs Meeting 
held on 29.01.2019, has appointed an Additional Director 
w.e.f. 01.04.2019. 

Adequate notice hod been given to ell Directors to 
schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent at least seven days In adVance end In cases 
where shorter notice/s were given tor Committee Meetings, at 
least one Independent Dtectorwas present at such meeffng/s 
end that the system exls1s tor seeking and obtaining further 
Information end clarlftccflons on the agenda Hems before 
the Meeffng end for meaningful parttclpatlon at the Meeting. 

Unanimous decisions were carried 1tvough as there were 
noccsesofdlssentofarry'Direclor In respect of cnydedslon and 
wasoccadln(t;c~ end recorded as patofthernh..ltes. 

We fUrther report that there are adequate systems 
and processes In place In the Company commensurate 
with the size end operations of the company to monitor end 
ensure compliance 1Ntth applicable laws. rules. regulations 
and guidelines referred to herein aboVe. 

We fUrther report that the Company had no specific 
event:Vccffons having major bearing on the Company's affairs 
In pursuance of the aboVe referred laws, rules, regulations. 
guidelines, standards. etc. except that the Board at Its Meeffng 
held on 29.01.2019, has appointed en Addll1oncl Director 
w.e.f. 01.04.2019. 

Place: Mumbcl 
29th May; 2019 

For JAYSHREE DAGLI &ASSOCIATES 
Company Secretaries 

Unique Code: S1995MH013400 

~~-:fiN~ 
Jcyshl99 s. Joshl 

F.C.S.1451 C.P.467 
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Directors' Report (Continued) 

Appendix Ill 
Form No. MGT-9 

I. 

Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on March 3 1 ,  201 9 
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act 201 3, and 

Rule 1 2( 1 )  of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 201 4] 

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
I. CIN: 

II. Registration Date: 

L28997MH1 959PLC01 1 304 

February 25, 1 959 

Hawkins Cookers Limited Ill. Name of the Company: 

lv. Category/Sub-Category of the Company: 

v. Address of the Registered office and contact details: 

Company limited by shareS/Indian Non-Govemment Company 

Maker Tower F1 01 , Cuffe Parade, Mumbai-400005 

vi. Whether listed company: 

vii. Name, Address and Contact details of 
Registrar and Transfer Agent: 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACnvrTIES OF THE COMPANY 

Tel: 022 - 221 86607/22181 605, Fax: 022-2218 1 190  
E-mail: ho@hawkinscookers.com 

Yes 

Link. lntime India Pvt. Ltd .• C-1 01 , 247 Park. 
L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400083. 
Tel: 022 - 491 86270/491 86000 

Business activities contributing 1 0 % or more of the total turnover of the Company: 

S. No. Name and Description of Main ProducWServlces NIC Code of the Product/SerVIce % of Total Turnover of the Company 
1 Pressure Cooker 28997 
2 Cookware 51392 

Ill. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: NIL 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break-up as percentage of Total Equity) 

(I) Category-wise Share Holding 

No. of Shares held No. of Shares held 

80 
1 7  

Category of at the beginning of the year at the end of the year 
Shareholders 

Dernat Physical Total %of Total Dernat Physical Total %of Total 

A. Promoters 

(1) Indian: lndMduals 25,78,904 Nil 25,78,904 48.77 25,78,904 Nil 25,78,904 48.77 

(2) Foreign: NRI-Individuals 3,83,932 Nil 3,83,932 7.26 3,83,932 Nil 3,83,932 7.26 

Total Shareholdlng of 
Promoter & Promoter Group 29,62,836 Nil 29,62,836 56.03 29,62,836 Nil 29,62,836 56.03 
B. Public Shareholdlng 

( 1 ) Institutions 

a. Mutual Funds 6,30,247 Nil 6,30,247 1 1 .92 6,67, 1 1 4  Nil 6,67, 1 1 4  1 2.62 

b. BonkS/Financial lnSiitutions 1 2,055 247 1 2,302 0.23 7,208 247 7.455 0.14  

c. Foreign Portfolio Investors 16.437 Nil 16.437 0.31 6.718  Nil 6.718 0.1 3  

d. Attemate Investment Funds 60,843 Nil 60,843 1 .1 5  87.745 Nil 87.745 1 .66 

Sub Total 7,19,582 247 7,19,829 13.61 7,68,785 247 7,69,032 14.54 
(2) Non-InStitutions 

a. Indian Bodies Corporate 1 ,67,51 7  745 1 ,68,262 3.18 36, 121 739 36,860 0.70 

b. Individuals 
i. lndMdual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital up to Rs. 1 lakh 8,50,969 1.73.258 1 0.24.227 1 9.37 9.42.1 70 1 .40.450 1 0.82.620 20.47 
ii. lndMdual shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs. 1 lakh 2,24,302 Nil 2,24,302 4.24 2,20,695 Nil 2,20,695 4.1 7  
c. Clearing Members 4,719 Nil 4,719 0.09 6,91 9  Nil 6,91 9  0.1 3  
d. NRI 76.486 Nil 76.486 1 .45 69.377 Nil 69.377 1 .31 
e. Trusts 314 Nil 314 0.01 658 Nil 658 0.01 
f. HUF 70.758 Nil 70.758 1 .34 72.725 Nil 72.725 1 .38 
g. Investor Education and 
Protection Fund 36,082 Nil 36,082 0.68 40,969 Nil 40,969 0.77 

h. Foreign Portfolio Investor Nil Nil Nil Nil 24 Nil 24 0.00 

I. NBFCs registered with RBI Nil Nil Nil Nil 25,1 00 Nil 25,100 0.47 

Sub Total 14,311147 1,74,003 16,05,150 30.36 14,14,758 1 ,41,189 15,55,947 29.43 
Total Public Shareholdlng 21,50,729 1,74,250 23,24,979 43.97 21,83,543 1,41,436 23,24,979 43.97 
Grand Total (A+ B) 51,13,565 1,74,250 52,87,815 100.00 51,46,379 1,41,436 52,87,815 100.00 

"" 
Change 

during 
the year 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.70 

-0.09 

-0.18 

0.51 

0.93 

-2.48 

1 .1 0  

-0.07 
0.04 

-0.14 
0.00 
0.04 

0.09 

0.00 

0.47 

-0.93 
0.00 
0.00 
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Appendix Ill of the Directors' Report (Continued) 

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

Shareholdlng Shareholdlng % 
at the beginning of the year at the end of the year Change 

No. of %of total %of Shares No. of %of total %of Shares 
In 

s. Shareholder's Share 
No. Name Shares Shares Pledged/ Shares Shares Pledged/ holding 

of the encumbered of the encumbered during 
Company to total Shares Company to total Shares the year 

1 Brahm vasudeva 1 8,28.732 34.58 0.00 1 8,28.632 34.58 0.00 -0.01 

2 Nell Vosudeva 3,80,032 7.19 0.00 3,80,032 7 . 19 0.00 0.00 

3 Nikhil Vasudeva 3,80,032 7.19 0.00 3,80,032 7 . 19 0.00 0.00 

4 Gltanjall V. Nevatla 1 ,21 ,792 2.30 0.00 1 ,21 ,792 2.30 0.00 0.00 

5 Gayatri S. Yadav 1 .21 .738 2.30 0.00 1 .21 .738 2.30 0.00 0.00 

6 Anuradha S. Khandelwal 1 ,21 .494 2.30 0.00 1 ,21 .494 2.30 0.00 0.00 

7 Sanjana Khandelwal 2,616 0.05 0.00 2,616 0.05 0.00 0.00 

8 Margot Amrit Vosudeva 1 ,600 0.03 0.00 1 ,600 0.03 0.00 0.00 

9 Aciya Khandelwal 1 ,600 0.03 0.00 1 ,600 0.03 0.00 0.00 

1 0  Angelina Pallavi Vosudeva 1 .400 0.03 0.00 1 .400 0.03 0.00 0.00 

1 1  Volentine Jaya Vosudeva 900 0.02 0.00 900 0.02 0.00 0.00 

1 2  Varun Hans Vasudeva 900 0.02 0.00 1 ,000 0.02 0.00 1 1 . 1 1  

Total 29,62,836 56.03 0.00 29,62,836 56.03 0.00 0.00 

(iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding: No change. 

(iv) Shareholding Pattem of the top ten Shareholders (other than Directors and Promoters) 

s. For Each of the Shareholdlng at the Increase Cumulative Shareholdlng 
Top 1 0  beginning of the year Date In share Reason during the year 

No. Shareholders No. of Shares I holding %of total No. of Shares %of total 

1 SBI Focused 2,50,000 I 4.73 01 -04-2018 - - 2,50,000 4.73 

Equity Fund 
31 -03-201 9  - - 2,50,000 4.73 

2 Kotek Emerging 1.36,520 I 2.58 01 -04-2018 - - 1 .36,520 2.58 

Equity Scheme 
1 3-07-2018 -24,000 Disposed 1 , 1 2,520 2 . 13  

1 7-08-2018 -344 Disposed 1 . 1 2, 1 76 2. 1 2  

21-09-201 8  -1 1 5  Disposed 1 . 1 2,061 2. 1 2  

31 -03-201 9  - - 1 . 1 2,061 2. 1 2  

3 Catamaran Advisors 1 . 15,953 j 2.19 01 -04-2018 - - 1 , 1 5,953 2 . 19  

LLP 
04-05-2018 -1 , 15,953 Disposed 0 0.00 

31 -03-201 9  - - 0 0.00 

4 SBI Small And 1.30,000 I 2.46 01 -04-2018 - - 1 .30,000 2.46 

Midcap Fund 
31 -03-201 9  1 .30,000 2.46 - -

5 SBI FMCG Fund 50,300 I 0.95 01 -04-2018 - - 50,300 0.95 

06-07-201 8  1 1 4  Acquired 50.414 0.95 

1 3-07-2018 24,586 Acquired 75,000 1 .42 

31-03-2019 - - 75,000 1 .42 

6 SBI Active 44,745 I 0.85 01 -04-2018 - - 44.745 0.85 

Select Fund 
31-03-2019 44.745 0.85 - -

® 
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Appendix Ill of the Directors' Report (Continued) 

s. For Each of the Shareholding at the Increase CumulaHve Shareholdlng 

No. Top 1 0  beginning or th e  year Date In share Reason during the year 
Shareholders No. of Shares %of total holding No. of Shares %or total 

7 Kotak Midcop 39,635 0.75 01 -04-201 8  - - 39,635 0.75 

1 1 -05-201 8  1.01 0 Acquired 40,645 0.77 

18-05-201 8  1,845 Acquired 42,490 0.80 

01 -06-201 8  396 Acquired 42,886 0.81 

08-06-201 8  3,073 Acquired 45,959 0.87 

26-1 0-2018 538 Acquired 46,497 0.88 

18-01-2019 1 , 198 Acquired 47,695 0.90 

01 -02-201 9  1 ,444 Acquired 49,1 39 0.93 

08-02-2019 1 ,560 Acquired 50,699 0.96 

1 5-03-201 9  2,223 Acquired 52,922 1 .00 

22-03-201 9  1 .736 Acquired 54,658 1 .03 

29-03-201 9  6,191 Acquired 60,849 1 . 15  

31 -03-201 9  - - 60,849 1 . 15  

8 Megh lshwer 36,250 0.69 01 -04-201 8  - - 36,250 0.69 

Manseta 
07-1 2-2018 500 Acquired 36.750 0.70 

31 -03-2019 - - 36.750 0.70 

9 Dolly Khanna 36.124 0.68 01 -04-201 8  - - 36. 1 24 0.68 

31 -03-2019 - - 36. 1 24 0.68 

1 0  Vikrom Venture 25.000 0.47 01 -04-201 8  - - 25.000 0.47 
Copltol Pvt. ltd. 

31 -03-2019 25.000 0.47 - -

Note: The above information is based on the weekly beneficiary position received from the Depositories. 

M Shareholdlng or Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Shareholdlng at the 
s. For Each or the Directors and I<MP beginning of the year 

No. 
No. of shares %or total 

1 Brahm Vasudeva (Director) 18,28,732 34.58 

2 J. M. Mukhi (Director) 5.345 0.10 

3 Shishir K Diwanji (Director) 5,100 0.10 

4 Subhadip Dutta Choudhury 50 0.00 
(VICe-Chairman and Managing Director) 

5 Sudeep Yodov (Executive Director-Finance 101 0.00 
& Administration and CFO) 

Increase Cumulative Shareholding 
Date In share Reason during the year 

holding No. or shares %of total 

01 -04-2018  - - 1 8,28,732 34.58 

06-06-2018  -1 00 Gift 1 8,28,632 34.58 

31 -03-2019 - - 1 8,28,632 34.58 

01 -04-2018  - - 5.345 0.10 

31 -03-2019 - - 5,345 0.10 

01 -04-2018  - - 5.100 0.10 

31 -03-2019 - - 5,100 0.10 

01 -04-2018  - - 50 0.00 

31 -03-2019 - - 50 0.00 

01 -04-2018  - - 101 0.00 

31 -03-2019 - - 101 0.00 



Appendix Ill of the Directors' Report (Continued) 

V. INDEBTEDNESS (of the Company Including Interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment) 

Rs. lakhs 

Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness ot the beginning of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount Nil 

II) Interest due but not paid Nil 

Ill) Interest accrued but not due Nil 

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

AddiHon 249.20 

Reduction Nil 

Net Change 249.20 

Indebtedness ot the end of the financial year 

i) Principal Amount 249.20 

II) Interest due but not paid Nil 

Ill) Interest accrued but not due Nil 

Total (1+11+111) 249.20 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director and Whole Time Director: 

s. 

Nil 2509.21 2509.21 

Nil Nil Nil 

Nil 1 74.79 1 74.79 

Nil 2684.00 2684.00 

Nil 592.93 842. 1 3  

Nil -265.19 -265.19 

Nil 327.74 576.94 

Nil 2828.48 3077.68 

Nil Nil Nil 

Nil 183.26 1 83.26 

Nil 3011.74 3260.94 

Rs. lakhs 

Name of MD/WID Total 
No. Particulars of RemuneraHon 

Subhadip Dutta Choudhury Sudeep Yadav Amount 

1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 1 7( 1 )  of 

the Income Tax Act.1 961 

(b) Volue of perquisites under Section 1 7(2) of 1he Income Tax Act, 1 961 

(c) Profits In lieu of salary under Section 1 7(3) of 1he Income Tax Act, 1961 

2 Commission (calculated os a % of profit) 

Total (A) 

Ceiling os per 1he Companies Act, 201 3 

B. Remuneration to other directors: 

80.87 77.52 

8. 1 1  0.96 

Nil Nil 

268.85 1 79.23 

357.82 257.72 

Particulars of Remuneratton Name of Directors 

Independent Directors J. M. Shishir K. Gerson do Gen.V. N. Sharma E. A. Rovi 
Mukhl Dlwanjl Cunha (Retd.) Kshlrsagar Kant 

Board/Committee meetings attendance fee 0.75 6.00 8.00 3.75 3.25 2.25 

Commission 1 1  ' 13 1 1 .1 3  1 1 .1 3  1 1 . 1 3  1 1 . 1 3  1 1  ' 13 

Total (1) 1 1 .88 1 7.13 19.13 1 4.88 1 4.38 13.38 

Non Executive Directors Brahm Vosudeva Susan M. Vasudeva 

Board/Committee meetings attendance fee 2.00 1 .50 

Commission 1 1 .1 3  1 1 . 1 3  

Oltler: Fee for Advisory Services 30.57 Nil 

Total (2) 43.69 12.63 

Total (B)=(1 +2) 

Total Managerial Remuneration (A+B)* 

OVerall Ceiling for Directors' Remuneration as per the Companies Act, 201 3 

* Includes Rs. 58.07 lakhs of fees which are not subject to the OVerall Ceiling as per the Companies Act, 2013. 

1 58.39 

9.07 

Nil 

448.08 

615.54 

896.16 

Rs.lakhs 

Total 

24.00 

66.75 

90.75 

3.50 

22.25 

30.57 

56.32 

147.07 

762.61 

985.78 
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Appendix: Ill ot the Directors' Report (ConHnued} 

C. Remunarallon to Key Managerial Personnel other than Whole nma Directors: 

S.No. PcrttcuJora or Remuneration or the Company Secretory 

1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions con1alned In Sac11on 17(1) ot the Income Tax Act, 1961 

(b) Value ot perquisites under Secflon 1 7(2) ot the Income Tax Act, 1961 

(c) � In lieu of salary under Secffon 17(3) of 1he Income tax Act. 1961 

2 Profit Performance lncen1tve 

Total 

VII. PENALnES I PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL. 

Appendix IV 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility 

Rs.lokhs 

30.50 

1.44 

Nil 

34.81 

66.75 

1 . Brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy: The primary product of Hawkins Cookers Umited. the pressure cooker. is a fuel and 

time saving dev1ce which benefits the users and 1he environment. We should focus on areas like rural development, women's and 

children'S health and nulr!Hon. conservation at forests and soli and water, mid-day meals for school children and such activities 

where our axper11se and products wtll help us ensure 1hat we make a real dlff919nce. 

2. CompositiOn of the CSR Committee: Mr. Gerson da Cunha, Independent Director, Chairman; Mr. Subhadlp Dutta ChOudhury, 

Vlce -O'Ialrman & Chief Executive otncer: Mr. Sudeep YackN. Executive Director-Finance & Administration. 

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 66.01 crores. 

4. Required CSR Expendnure: Rs. 1 .32 crores. 

5. Details of CSR spend for the nnanclal year: Amount spent for the nnanclal year: Rs. 13.30 lakhs; Amount unspent: 

Rs. 1 . 19 crores: Project identified: 'Improving the Health of Women and Children by cutting Indoor Air Pollution with Pressure Cooking'. 

The Compa'IV has mplemented 1he said project In partnership wt1h Bhaglra1h Gramvlkas Pra11shthan (BGP), an NGO, In the Slndhudli'Q 

district of Maharashtra. Up 1o March 31, 2019, BGP has conduc1ed demonstrations in 31 villages and has distributed 999 pressure 

cookers 1o vlllagels at a 50% discount on the MRP. It Is an extremely complex operal1on requiring multiple Inputs such as 1ralnlng 

and mottvaflon and supervision at demonsiTators. logistics for the supply of pressure cookers to villages In a remote district In rural 

Maharash1ra, co-ordination with and mo11vat1on of BGP which has been funded by va�ous third parties with their own mollvattons 

and the requirement to prepare wrttten and Illustrated maler1al1o explain to villagers In Mara1hl the benefits at pressure cooking 

In terms at fast cooking, fuel and money savings and saving of mothers and toddlers from smoke lnhalal1on (1ndoor-pollutlon1. 

The Company therefore could not spend all of the Rs.1.32 crores on actlvll1es under the Corporate Social Responsibility In the 

year ended March 31. 2019. The Company is in touch with other NGOs to expand the operation to other parts of 1he Country. 

6. The Implementation and monltor1ng of the CSR Polley Is In compliance wtth 1he CSR objectives and Polley of the Company. 

�D�o� 
VIce Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

�.,...,44, C....k, 
Gerson da Cunha 

Chairman of CSR Committee 
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Directors' Report (Continued) 

Appendix V 
Disclosure under Rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014 

I. Top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the year and 

Employees with remuneration drawn during the year of Rs. One crore two lakhs or more 

s. Dellgnatton 
Gross Experi· Date of Last Employment 

No. 
Name Aqa Nalu18 of Duties 

RemunaraHon Quallftcallon ence Start of Name of PosiHon 
(Rs.) (Years) Employment Employer Held 

1 Subhadlp Dutta 51 VIce Chairman 3,57,82,245 B. Tech. 27 1 8.05.1 992 - -

Choudhury and ElecfTical Engineering, 
(Notes 1 & 4) Chief liT, Kharagpur 

Executive Post Graduate Diploma 
Officer In Management 

liM. Calcutta 

2 Sudeep Yadav 51 Executive 2,57,71 ,587 B. Tech. 27 22.07.2013 Cltlbank Managing 
(Notes 2 & 4) Director TexHie Technology, N.A. Director, 

Finance and liT, Delhi Head-Indio. 
Administration Post Graduate Diploma Cili Transaction 

In Management Services 
liM, Calcutta 

3 Tej Paul Sharma 57 Executive 1 .09.32.001 B. Com. 37 1 4. 1 1 .1 983 Speedo Salesman 
(Note 4) VIce President st. Xavier's College, Sales 

Sales Calcutta Corpora11on 

4 Neil Vasudeva 48 Executive 1 ,04,09,647 B.A. 26 5.1 1 . 1 997 Recl<itt & Product 
(Notes 3 & 4) Vice President St. stephen's College. Colman of Manager 

Markeilng Delhi India Limited Pest Control 
Post Graduate Diploma 

in Business Management, 
XLRI. Jamshedpur 

5 J. K. Chakrabartl 59 Senior 94,50,371 B. E. 37 31 .01 . 1991 Philips Indio Assistant 
Vice President Jodovpur University, Limited Manager 
Research and Calcutta R&D 
Development 

6 Rahul Pathak 42 SeniOr 92.81 .653 B. E. 18  28.04.2014 Accusanic CEO 
Vice President Bhorti Vidyapeeth Controls 
Manufacturing College of Engineering, 

Support Mumbal, 
M. E. - Production 

Engineering 
Veermato Jeejabal 

Technologlcal lnstiMe, 
Mumboi 

7 Brahmananda 54 Senior 86.49.025 CA. L L B, ICWA. CS, 34 9.01.2012 BEM Limited Dy. General 
Pan I VIce President MBA. Xavier Institute Manager 

Finance and of Management. Finance and 
Accounts Bhubaneswar Accounts 

8 Copt. K. S. Khera 58 Senior 81 ,08,361 B. Sc. 36 1 7.03.1 992 Agro Tech Securl1y 
Vice President Bareilly College India limited Officer 

Personnel 

9 B. S. Sethi 60 VIce President 77.75,668 Diploma In Instrument 38 1 .1 1 . 1989 Khanna Assistant 
Technical TechnolOgy, Post Diploma watches Manager 
Projects in Die and Mould Making. Limited R&D 

Indo SWiss Training 
Centre, Chandlgorh 

l O  Rajesh Sharma 58 Vice President 74,57,597 Diploma in Mechanical 40 23.07. 1979 Punjab Trainee Diploma 
Manufacturing Engineering, Untied Forge Engineer 

Government Polytechnic, Limited 
Hoshiorpur 

Notes: 1 .  On contract basis. 2. On contract basis. Relative of Mr. Brahm Vasudeva, Chairman. 3. Relative of Mr. Brahm Vasudeva, 
Chairman. and Mrs. Susan M. Vasudeva. Director. 4. Mr. Subhadip Dutta Choudhury. Mr. Sudeep Yadav. Mr. Tej Paul Sharma and 
Mr. Nell Vasudeva were In receipt of remuneration during the year 201 8-1 9 which In the aggregate was not less than Rupees 
one crore two lakihs. 
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11. Details of remuneratton of each Director/Company Secretary In 2018-19 

Director/Company Secretary 

Directors 

Brahm Vasudavo 

SUbhadlp Dul1c Choudhury. VIce ChcllmCn end Chief ExecutiVe Off1cer 

SUdeep YcdcV; Executllle Director-Finance & AdmlnlstraHon end CFO 

J. M. Mukhl 

Shlshlr K DtwcnJI 

Gerson de Cunha 

General V. N. Sharma (Retd.) 

E. A. Kshirsagor 

Susan M. Vosudava 

Ra\11 Kent 

Company Secretary 
Hutox! Bhescnlc 

% lncrea .. over Ratio 1o median 
previous year remuneratton 

1 1 .7% 2.6 : 1  

15.5% 71.9 : 1 

1 1 .6% 51 .8 : 1  

15.9% 2.4 : 1  

7.0% 3.4 : 1  

19.5% 3.8 : 1 

14.4% 3.0 : 1  

1 2.7% 2.9 : 1 

9.8% 2.5 : 1  

1 3.8% 2.7 : 1 

2.3% Not required 

Ill. Number of permanent employees on 1be rolls of 1tle Company: as on 31 .3.2019: 645; as on 31 .3.201 8: 676. 

IV. The median annual remuneration of all permanent employees at the end of 201 8-19 was Rs. 4. 98 lckhs which was a 

1 1 .0% Increase on the lden11cal figure for 201 7-1 8. 

V. Taking into account the total remuneration of all employees of the Company (including temporaJY employees) in the year 

201 8-19 and dMding it by the number of such employees as at 1he end of the year, we arrive at the average remuneJation 

per employee during the sold year. \\'hen we compare the average remuneration per employee thus derived for 2018-19 

wtth 1he Identical computation for 201 7-18, we get the percent Increase In 201 8-19 over Its previous year. 

The said comparison for employees ofhef 1hcn the 1wo Executive Directors in 201 8-19 was an increase of 14.4% and for 

the Executive Directors was an Increase of 1 3.8%. 

The increase of 1 4.4% in the eamings of the employees other than Executive Directors is in line with the 1 1 .4% increase in 

the net profits of the Company. 

The Increase In 1he remuneration of Executllle Directors Is as per the Remuneratton Polley of the Company to employ the 

best available talent and to remunerate them competitively and fairly in line with the performance of 1he Company. 

C OM PLIANCE WITH TH E CORPO RATE GOVE RNANCE C O D E  O F  C O N D U C T  

Tile Board has formulated The Corporate Governance Code of Conduct for all Directors and Senior Managers 

of the Company which has been pos1ed on 1he website of the Company. It Is hereby affirmed 1tlat all Directors 

end Senior Managers have complied wtth Tile Corporate Governance Code of Conduct framed by the Company and 

a conflrmaHon to this effect for the year 2018-19 has been ob1alned from ell Directors end Senior Mcnaget"S. There Is no 

Instance of non-compliance. 

Mumbal 
May 1 7, 2019 

BY ORDER OF lHE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

�4� SUBHADIP DUTTA CHOUDHURY 
VICE-cHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECLmVE OFFICER 



I N D E P E N D E NT A U D ITOR'S C E RTIFICATE O N  CORPORATE GOVE RNANCE 

To the Members of Hawkins Cookers Limited 

1 .  This certificate Is Issued In accordance With the terms of our engagement le1ter dated August 1 8, 2017. 

2. This report cont<*ls detals of compllcn::e of conditions of Corporate Govemance by HaM<Ins Cookefs Limited ("the Company") 

fa1he year ended March 31. 2019. as sfi>ulated In R�latlon 1 7  to 27. aauses (b) to (I) of Sib-regulation (2) of regulal1on 46 ald 
paragraphs C. D and E of Schedule V of the SeclJit1es and Exchange Board of India (Lislfng Obllgalfons and Dlsdosure RecJjremenfs). 

ReglJalfons. 2015, as amended ("the Llslfng Regulalfons"). wtllch we have ln!lfded for ldenll!loolfon purposes Oft./. 

Management's Relponslblllty 

3. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is 1he responsibility of 1he management. including preparation and 

maintenonce of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes the design. implementalion and 

maintenonce of intemal control and procedures to ensure 1he compliance with the conditions of 1he Cotporate Govemance 

sffpulated in the Listing Regulcrlions. 

Auditor's Responatbllltv 

4. PullUOnt to the requirements of 1he Listing Regulations, It Is our responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance wnefher the 
Company has complied With fhe cond!Hons of Corporate Governance as stipulated In Regulation 1 7  to 27. Clauses (b) to (I) 
of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and paragraphs c. D and E of Schedule v of the Listing Regulattons tor the year ended 
March 31, 2019. 

5. Our responsibility Is limited to examining the procedures and lmplementalfon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 

the compliance of the condlt1ons of Corporate Governance. It Is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 

statements of the Company. 

6. We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documerns maintained by the Company for the 
puiJX)SeS of providing reasonable assurance on 1he compliance With Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

7. We have can1ed out an examination of the relevant records of the Company In accordance With the Guidance Note on 

Certtncalfon of Corporate Govemance Issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India ("the ICAn. the Standards 

on Audlttng specified under Seclfon 1 43(1 0) of the Companies Act 2013, In so far as applicable tor the purpose of this certtncate 

and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes Issued by the ICAI wtllch requires that we comply 

With the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics Issued by the ICAI. 

8. We have cor'fl)lied with fhe relevant applicable requiremenfs of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1 .  Quality Control for 

Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Histolical Financial lnfolmalion. and Other Ass\Jrance and Related Services Engagements. 

Opinion 

9. Based on our examination of the rel9110nt records and according to the Information and explanations provided to us and 

the representations provided by the Management, we certify fhat fhe Company has complied With the conditions of Corporate 

Govemance as stipulated In Regulation 1 7  to 27. Clauses (b) to (I) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 ond paragraphs c, D and 
E of Schedule V of 1he Listing Regulations during the year ended March 31, 2019. 

10. We further state that such compliance Is neither an assurance as to the future VlabiiHy of the Company nor the emclency or 

effecttveness With wtllch the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Restriction on Ul8 

1 1  . This certtflcate has been Issued at the request of the Company SOlely tor the purpose to enable the Company to comply wtth 

the requirement of the SEBI lls11ng Regulal1ons. and should not be used by any other person or for any o1her purpose without our 

prior wrttten consent. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any 

o1her person to wnom this certtflcate Is shown or Into whose hands It may come wtthout our prior consent In wrtlfng. 

For KALYANIWALLA &. MISTRY LLP 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Flm RegiS"alla> Nu.-1� 
M. BHESANIA 

PARtNER 
Place : Mumbal MembefWIIp Number 127355 
Date : June 28, 2019 UDIN No. : 19127355AAAABW6898 
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RE P O R T  O N  COR PORATE GOVERNANCE 
Company's Philosophy 

Hawkins Cookers Limited believes In corporate govemance tnat optimises results In tne present and tne long-term, 

appropriately balancing 1he expectations of all major stakeholders (consumers, employees, associates and shareholders). It achieves 

the required results by focusing on technology, management and marketing In tne area of pressure cookers and cookware. 

The Company Is committed to transparency, fair dealings wtth all and the creation of value on competitive me�t. 

Board of Directors 

As on date, the Board of Directors consists of eleven Directors: a Non-Executive Chairman, a Vice-Chairman & 

Chief Executive Officer, an Executive Director, six Independent Directors and two non-Executive Directors. During the year under 

report, four Board Meetings were held: on May 30 (Se�al No. 1 2), August 7 (Serial No. 1 3), November 1 3  (Serial No. 1 4), 2018, 

and January 29, 201 9 (Serial No. 1 5) .  The Directors' attendance for the said meetings and other details are as follows. 

Directors Details 

Whether 
Director of Other Companies Number of 

Name lk Director Board Committee 
Identification Position Meetings 

Attended Names of the other positions in Other 
Last Number of 

Number Attended 
AGM Companies 

listed Companies and Companies 
Category of Directorship (Note 1 )  

Brahm Vasudeva Promoter, 

001 77451 
Non-Executive 3 Yes 1 None None 

Chairman 

Subhadip Dutta VIce-Chairman & 
Chief Executive 

Choudhury Officer, 
4 Yes None None None 

00141 545 
Executive Director 

Sudeep Yadav Executive Director -
(Note 2) Finance & 4 Yes None None None 

02909892 Administration 

J. M. Mukhi Independent 1 No None None None 
00152618 Director 

Shishir K. Diwanji Independent 
4 (Including 

Kaira Can Company Ltd., 2 Yes one as None 
00087529 Director 

Chairman) 
Independent Director 

Gerson de Cunha Independent 
4 Yes 1 None None 00060055 Director 

General V. N. Independent 
Sharma (Retd.) 4 Yes None None None 

001 77350 Director 

1 . Batllbol Limited, 
Independent Director 

E. A. Kshlrsagar Independent 
2. J M Financial Ltd .. 4 

4 Yes 5 Independent Director (Including tnree as 00121 824 Director 3. Manappuram Finance Chairman) 
Limited, 
Independent Director 

Susan M. Promoter Group, 
Vasudeva (Note 3) Non-Executive 3 Yes None None None 

06935629 Director 

Ravi Kant Independent 
4 Yes 3 

Vedanta Ltd., 1 
00016184 Director Independent Director 

Leena Chatte�ee Non-Executive Not Not (Note 4) Director Applicable Applicable None None None 
08379794 

Notes: 1 .  As required bytne SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 201 5, tne Committees considered 
here are only Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee and membership of Committees of Private Limited 
Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8 of the Companies Act 201 3, Is excluded. 2. Mr. Sudeep Yadav 
is son-in-law of Mr. Brahm Vasudeva. 3. Mrs. Susan M. Vasudeva is wife of Mr. Brahm Vasudeva. 4. Prof. Leena Chatterjee was 
appointed as an Additional Director wtth effect from Ap�l 1 ,  2019. 

The Company requires skillS/expertise/competencies in the areas of Marketing, General Management. Financial 
Competency and Legal Expertise and the same are available wtth tne Board. 



Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 

Audit Committee 

The role of the Audit Committee in the year under report, as is usual, was to oversee the Company's financial reporHng 

process and the disclosure of Its financial Information to ensure that the financial statements are correct. sufficient and credible; 

to recommend appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the statutory auditors; to approve payment to statutory 

auditors for any other services rendered by them; to examine and review, with the management, the quarterly and the annual 

financial statements and the auditors' report thereon before submission to the Board for approval with particular reference to 

(a) Matters required to be included in the Directors' Responsibility Statement in 1he Board's Report; (b) changes, if any, in accounting 

policies and practices and reasons for the same; (c) major accounting entries invoMng estimates based on the exercise of judgment 

by management; (d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; (e) compliance with 

llst1ng and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; (f) required disclosure of any related party transactions; and 

(g) any qualmcatlons In the draft audit report, 

Further. the Audit Committee is required to review and monitor the statutory auditors' independence and performance 

and effectiveness of the audit process; to approve related party transactions as per the policy approved by the Board; to evaluate 

intemal financial control and risk management systems; to review, with the management. the performance of statutory and intemal 

auditors and adequacy of the lntemal control systems; to review the adequacy of the lntemal audit function; to discuss with the 

lntemal auditor any slgnmcant findings and follow-up thereon; to review the findings of lntemal auditor Into matters where there Is 

suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of intemal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board; 

to discuss with statutory auditors about the nature and scope of audit and post-audit areas of concem; to look into the reasons 

for substantial defaults if any in the payment to the depositors. shareholders and creditors; to review the functioning of the Whistle 

Blower Mechanism; to approve the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer. Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings are 

circulated to the Members of the Board, discussed and noted or acted upon, as required. 

The Audit Committee, consisting of the five Independent Directors. met four times during the year under report and the 

attendance of Members at the Meetings was as follows: 

Name or Director Number or Meetings Attended 

E. A Kshirsagar, Chairman 4 

Shishir K. Diwanji 3 

Gerson da Cunha 4 

General V. N. Sharma (Retd.) 4 

J. M. Mukhi l 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of three Independent Directors and one non-Executive Director: 

Mr. Shishir K. Diwanji, Chairman, Mr. Gerson da Cunha, General V. N. Sharma (Retd.) and Mr. Brahm Vasudeva. The Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee In the year under report was charged with the responsibility to formulate the c�te�a for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes and Independence of a director and to recommend to the Board a policy relating to the 

remuneration of the directors. key managerial personnel and other employees; to formulate the criteria for evaluation of the 

Independent Directors and the Board; to devise a policy on Board diversity; to identify persons who are qualified to become 

Directors and who may be appointed in senior management one level below the Executive Directors in accordance with the 

criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their appointment and removal; whether to extend or continue the term of 

appointment of Independent Directors on basis of their performance evaluation. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, met twice during 1he year under report and all the four Members attended 

the said Meeting. 

The Remuneration Polley formulated by the Company has been placed at the Company's website at 

https:/twww.hawklnscookers.com/download/RemunerationPollcy.pdf. 

Criteria for the Evaluation of the Individual Performance of Independent Directors (IDs) recommended by the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee and accepted by the Board are as stated hereinbelow: 

1 .  The time and attention the ID is able to give to the business of the Company. 2. The effectiveness and quality of the 

advice that the ID Is able to con�bute towards the functioning of the Board. 3. The objec'!Miy and quality of the advice the ID Is 

able to con�bute to the govemance of the Company. 4. The degree to which the ID Is able to convey the concerns and needs 

of Society. 

@ 
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued) 

Criteria for the Evaluation of the Performance of the Board of Directors as a whole recommended by the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and accepted by the Board are as stated hereinbelow: 

1 .  The level to which the Board has maintained and grown the reputation of the Company as well as the physical and 

financial assets of the Company. 2. The level to which the Board has developed and maintained good relations with all stakeholders 

In the Company such as employees, associates, vendors, customers, consumers, Investors, shareholders and the govemment. 

3. The level to which the Board has ensured that the Company Is In compliance with all legal requirements. 

Directors' Remuneration 

The remuneration of the Executive Directors for the year 2018-19 Is as per the table below: 

Provident Fund, Perquisites & 
Director Salarv Superannuation Allowances Commission Total Contract Pertod 

& Gratuity 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 

S. Dutta Choudhury 48.00 1 5.27 25.71 268.85 357.82 
1 . 1 0.2016 to 

30.9.201 9 

1 . 1 0.2016 to 
Sudeep Yadav 40.00 1 2.72 25.76 1 79.23 257.72 30.9.201 9 

Notes: 1 .  One Lal<h = 1 ,00,000. 2. The above figures do not include provision for encashable leave as the provision in the 

accounts for this item based on an actuarial valuation is made for all permanent employees taken together. 

As per the contracts entered into by the Company with the Vice-Chairman & Chief Executive Officer and the Executive 

Director-Finance and Administration, their services may be terminated by either party at three months' notice. There is no provision 

in their contracts for payment of severance fees. 

Benefits extended to Mr. Brahm Vasudeva, Chairman of the Board, for his Advisory Services for the year 2018-19 were 

Rs. 30.57 lal<hs as per the contract approved by the Board of Directors at its Meeting (Serial No. 4) held on May 19, 201 6. In addition, 

an office has been provided to the non-Executive Chairman at the registered office of the Company. 

During the year 2018-19, the Company paid Sitting fees to the Non-Executive Directors of Rs. 50,000 per Meeting of the 

Board and Rs. 25,000 per Meeting of the Committees of the Boord for attending the Meetings. The Company also reimburses the 

out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the Directors for attending the Meetings. 

The Shareholders have at the AGM of the Company held on August 6, 2015, approved payment of Commission to the 

Non-Executive Directors within the ceiling of 1 %  of the Net Profits of the Company as computed under the applicable provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, for each year up to the following five years. For the year 2018-19, the Board has resolved to distribute 

the said amount of Rs.89.00 lal<hs of Commission equally within the said ceiling amongst the 8 Non-Executive Directors. 

Details of the remuneration to the Non-Executive Directors for the year 2018-19 are given below: 

Director Commission Payable Board Meeting Committee Meeting 

for the Year 2018-19 Fees Paid Fees Paid 
Total 

Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs 

Brahm Vasudeva 1 1 . 1 3  1 .50 0.50 1 3 . 1 3  

J .  M. Mul<hl 1 1 . 1 3  0.50 0.25 1 1 .88 

Shlshlr K. Dlwanjl 1 1 . 1 3  1 .00 5.00 1 7. 1 3  

Gerson da Cunha 1 1 . 1 3  2.00 6.00 1 9. 1 3  

General V.N. Sharma (Retd.) 1 1 . 1 3  2.00 1 .75 1 4.88 

E. A Kshlrsagar 1 1 . 1 3  2.00 1 .25 1 4.38 

Susan M. Vasudeva 1 1 . 1 3  1 .50 - 1 2.63 

Ravl Kant 1 1 . 1 3  2.00 0.25 1 3.38 

Total 89.00 1 2.50 1 5.00 1 1 6.50 
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Shareholdlng or Non-ExecuHve Directors as at 31 .3.2019 

Director Number of Shares Held 

Brahm Vasudeva 1 8,28.632 

J. M. Mukhi 5.345 

Shishir K. Diwanji 5.1 00 

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee consists of 1wo Independent Directors, Mr. Shlshlr K. Dlwan]l, Chairman, and 

Mr. Gerson do Cunha and two Executive Directors, Mr. Subhadlp Dutta Choudhury and Mr. Sudeep Yadav. Mrs. Hutoxl Bhesanla, 

Company Secretary, Is the Compliance Officer. The Committee met sixteen times In 2018-19. The number of shareholders' 

complaints received during the year 2018-19  are 1 6  (previous year: 1 7) and all have been satisfactorily resolved within the year 

except one which has been subsequently resolved. 

General Body Meetings 

The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under: 

Financial 
Date Time Location Special Resolutions Passed 

Year 

201 5-2016  4.8.2016 4:00 pm Jai Hind College, 'A' Road, None proposed. 

Churchgate. Mumbai 400020 

2016-201 7 2.8.201 7 4:00 pm Patl<ar Hall, SNDT Women's Unlverst1y. Place of keeping Registers and Annual Retums. 

Vlthaldas Thackersey Marg, 

Churchgate. Mumbai 400020 

201 7-2018 7.8.2018 4:00 pm Ramo Watumull Auditorium, 1 . Six Special Resolutions for the Continuance of 
Kishinchand Chellaram College, the Directorships of the following Non-Executive 

Dinshaw Wacha Road, Churchgate. Directors who had attained the age of 75 years 
Mumbal 400020 as at April 1 .  2019: 

i. Mr. Brahm Vasudeva 
ii. Mr. J. M. Mukhi 

Ill. Mr. Shlshlr K. Dlwan]l 

iv. Mr. Gerson do Cunha 

v. Gen. V. N. Sharma (Retd.) 

vi. Mr. E. A Kshlrsagar 

2. Continuance of the Di rectorship of 

Mr. Ravi Kant. Non-Executive Director, who would 

attain the age of 75 years on June 1 .  2019. 

No special resolutions were required to be put through postal ballot in the year 201 8-1 9. No special resolutions on matters 

requiring postal ballot are placed for shareholders' approval at the 59th Annual General Meeting. 

Means of Communication 

During the year, quarterly results were approved by the Board of Directors and submitted to BSE Ltd. in terms of the 

requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 20 1 5. Quarterly results and 

all other mandated Notices are published as required in prominent local daily newspapers. namely. The Economic Times and 

Maharashtra Times. The results are displayed on the Company's website www.hawklnscool<ers.com. No news releases have been 

Issued by the Company and no presentations have been made to lnst1tut1onal lnvestors or to analysts. Management Discussion 

and Analysis Is stated In the Directors' Report. 

Disclosures 

The Related Party Transactions Polley duly approved by the Board of Directors has been placed on the Company's website 

at https:/Jwww.hawkinscool<ers.com/Rpt.aspx. There were no transactions of a material nature during the year 2018-19 with the 

Promoters. the Directors or the Management or relatives that may have any potential conflict with the interest of the Company 

at large. Transactions with related parties as per the requirements of lnd AS 24 are disclosed in Point 1 2  in Note 34 forming part 

of the financial statements. 
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There were no instances of non-compliance by tne Company nor have any penalties or shictures been imposed by BSE 

Ltd. or the SecuriHes and Exchange Board of India or any other statutory authortty du�ng the last three years on any matter related 

to the capital marl<ets. The Company Is In compliance with all the applicable requirements of the Listing Agreement with BSE Ltd. 

and SEBI (Listing ObllgaHons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaHons. 2015. 

The details of the establishment of VIgil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Polley have been stated In the Directors' Report. It Is afftrmed 

that no person has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee under the VIgil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Polley. 

The principal commodity used by the Company Is aluminium. The globally accepted bench marl< for aluminium prices Is the 

poce quoted on the London Metal Exchange. The monthly average of the LME quotations In April 201 8 was US $ 2,246 per tonne and 

in March 2019 was US $ 1 ,872 per tonne. that is. 1 6.7% lower. The Company does not undertake any commodity hedging activity. 

A certificate from a Company Secretary In practice has been received staHng that none of the directors on the Board of 

the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by SEBVMinistry 

of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

All the recommendaHons of the various Committees of the Boord were accepted by the Boord. 

Details relaHng to tees paid to the statutory Auditors are given In Note 33 forming part of the financial statements. 

In the year 2018-19 no case of sexual harassment of women was flied under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention. ProhlbiHon and Redressal) Act. 2013. 

The details of the tamlllarlzaHon programs for the Independent Directors are available at htlps:/twww.hawklnscook.ers.com'ldfp. 

Shareholder Information 

The 59th Annual General Meeting Is to be held on Tuesday, August 6, 2019, at 4:00 pm at Ramo Watumull Auditorium, 

Klshlnchand Chellaram College, Dlnshaw Wacha Rood, Churchgate. Mumbal 400020. 

The Financial Calendar In the year 201 9-20 Is as follows: 

Stock Market Price data 

tor the year 20 18-19 

The equity shares of the 

Company are listed on BSE Ltd., 

P. J. Towers, Dalal street, 

Mumbal - 400001 . 

stock Code: 508486. 

The annual listing fees 

for tne year 201 9-20 

have been paid 

to BSE Ltd. 

May 29: Approval of the Annual Results of 2018-19 

July 1 3: Mailing of tne Annual Report 

July 31 to August 6: Dates of Book Closure 

August 6: Approval of the First Quarter Results 

August 6: Annual General Meeting 

By September 5: Payment of DMdend of Rs.80 per share 

(Subject to tne approval of tne shareholders). 

By November 1 4: Approval of the Second Quarter Results 

By February 1 4: Approval of the Third Quarter Resutts 

Month 
Company Stock Prices Rs. BSE Sensex 

High Low High Low 

April 3371 2730 352 1 3  32973 

May 3100 2727 35994 34303 

June 2919 2700 35877 34785 

July 2899 2652 37645 35107 

August 3510 2665 38990 37129 

September 3548 2886 38934 35986 

October 3069 2755 3661 7 33292 

November 3190 2805 36389 34303 

December 3030 2780 36555 34426 

January 2975 2800 36701 35376 

February 2949 2731 371 72 35287 

March 3126 2781 38749 35927 
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The Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) is Link. lntime India Pvt. Ltd (registered office at C-1 0 1 .  247 Park. 

LBS Marg, Vlkhroll West, Mumbal 400083). Tlle RTA acknowledges and executes transfer of shares, arranges for Issue of dMdend, 

processes demate�allsaHon and remate�allsatlon of shares, receives and deals with complaints from Investors under the supervision 

and control of the Company. 

The Company's shares are traded on BSE Ltd. In dematerlallsed mode. As per SEBI Notification No. SEBI/LAD­

NRO/GN/201 8/24 dated June 8, 2018, and further amendment vide Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/201 8/49 dated 

November 30, 2018, requests tor effecting transfer of physically held secumles (except In case of transmission or transposition of 

securities) shall not be processed from April 1 ,  2019. 

N. on March 31 ,  2019, 51 ,46,379 shares were held In a dematerlallsed mode representing 97.33% of the Company's 

total shares and the balance 1 .41 .436 shares (2.67%) were held In physical mode. 

Dlrtrtbutlon of shares as on March 3 1 ,  2019 

By Size of Holding or the Shareholders. 

Shareholders Shares 
Holding 

Number % Number % 

1 to 1 ,000 1 4,078 98.90 9,4 1 , 1 22 1 7.80 

1 ,001 to 5,000 1 1 4  0.80 2,44,61 0  4.63 

5,001 to 1 0,000 1 0  0.07 65,392 1 .24 

Above 1 0,000 32 0.22 40,36,691 76.34 

Total 1 4,234 100.00 52,87,81 5  1 00.00 

By category of Shareholders. 

Category Number or Shares Shareholdlng 

Promoters 29,62,836 56.03% 

Individuals and Others 1 6,06,832 30.39% 

Mutual Funds 6,67, 1 1 4  1 2.62% 

Bodies Corporate 36,860 0.70% 

Foreign Portfolio Investors 6,71 8  0. 1 3% 

Banks/Financial Institutions 7,455 0. 1 4% 

Total 52,87,815 1 00.00% 

Certain figures in certain tables that appear in this report apparently do not add up because of rounding off but are 

wholly accurate in themselves. 

In 201 8-1 9, the Company's exports were all on advance payment or Letters of Credit at sight. Tllerefore, the foreign 

exchange risk. was minimal. Tlle Company undertook. no activity hedging foreign exchange. 

Credit Rating: Tlle Company has obtained credit ratings from ICRA du�ng the year ended March 31 , 201 9, for the following: 

(I) Fixed Deposits Programme - Rating: MM stable (High credit quality with low credit �sk) 

(II) Bank. Facilities - Rating: AA- Stable (High degree of safety with low credit risk.) 

There has been no change in Credit Ratings during the year. 

The Company's plants are located at Tllane (Maharashtra), Hoshiarpur (Punjab) and in Satharia, Jaunpur District (UP). 

Address for Communication: The Company's registered office is situated at Maker Tower F1 01 . Cuffe Parade, 

Mumbai 400005. Shareholders holding shares in dematerialised mode should address their correspondence regarding change 

of address/bank details to their respective Depository Participant. Shareholders holding physical shares should address their 

correspondence to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Llnk. lntlme India Pvt. Ltd. at the address given In this report 

hereinabove or to the Company. 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEM BERS OF HAWKINS COOKERS LIM ITED 
Report on the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying lnd /lS financial statements of Hawkins Cookers Limited nhe Company"), which 

comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3 1 ,  201 9, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements. 

including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

lnd /lS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 

In conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

March 3 1 ,  2019. Its profit, changes In equity and Its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAsJ specified under section 1 43(1 OJ of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (�the Act·). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are Independent of the Company In accordance with the 

Code of Ethics Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 

to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional judgment, were of most significance In our audit of the 

lnd PoS financial statements of the current pe�od. 1hese matters were addressed In the context of our audit of the financial statements 

as a whole, and In forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Key Audit Matter Description 

1 .  Accounting for Discounts, Schemes etc. 

Refer to Note 1 .8 UJ (Accounting Policies). Note 24 (Revenue 

recognised & related disclosures) to the lnd AS financial 

statements. 

Revenue is measured net of discounts, incentives and volume 

rebates eamed by customers on the sale of Company's 

products. 

The Company makes estimates of discounts. incentives and 

volume rebates on sales made during the year, which Is 

considered to be mate�al and Involves significant amount of 

complexity and judgement. 

Therefore, there Is a rlsl< of revenue being mate�ally misstated 

on account of errors in arriving at discounts. incentives and 

volume rebates. 

How the scope of our audit 

addressed the Key Audit Matter 

Our procedures included: 

• Assessing the Company's revenue recognition policies, 

Including those related to discounts, Incentives and 

volume rebates by comparing with the applicable lnd AS. 

• Evaluating the design and lmplemental1on. and testing 

the operating effectiveness of controls over recognition 

and measurement criteria and adequacy of discounts. 

Incentives and volume rebates. 

• Comparing the discounts, incentives and volume rebates 

with the prior year and, where relevant performed further 

Inquiries and testing. We reconciled a sample of discounts, 

incentives and volume rebate accruals to supporting 

documentation and challenged management's 

assumptions used In estimating rebate accruals. 

• We also assessed as to whether the disclosures in respect 

of these expenses were adequate. 



Key Audit Matter Description 

2. Inventory Valuation and Provisioning 

Refer to Note 1 .8 (d) (Accounting Policies) and Note 8 

(Inventory recognised) to the lnd AS financial statements. 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 

value (NRV). Raw Materials are valued at weighted average 

cost. Inventory other than Raw Materials namely Packing 

Material. Stores & Spares and stock-in-Trade are valued 

at lower of First-In, First-Out cost and NRV. Work-in-Progress 

and Finished Goods Include costs of conversion and an 

appropriate share of production overheads based on normal 

production capacHy. 

We do not consider the valuation of these inventories to be 

at a high risk of significant misstatement. or to be subject 

to a significant level of judgement However. on account 

of the computation of inventory valuation being parHally 

automated, this is considered to be an area which required 

significant attention In terms of time and efforts. 

other Information 
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How the scope of our audit 

addreased the Key Audit Matter 

Our procedures Included: 

• Assessing the Company's Inventory valuation policies. 

• Evaluating the design and Implementation, and testing 

the operating effectiveness of controls over the manual 

procedures performed for inventory valuation. 

• Tracing the physical inventory count sheets in case of the 

items for which physical verification was performed by 

us, to the valuation sheets to ensure completeness of all 

Items considered for the valuation purpose. 

• Re-performlng the computation of the rate of valuation 

for a sample of major Inventory Items In each broad 

category of Inventory. 

• Verifying all links and formulas to ensure there are no 

misstatements on account of errors. 

• Verifying the joumals posted to inventory to identify unusual 

or irregular items. 

• Developing an expectation with respect to the average 

valuation rates for each major category of Inventory and 

compared the same with the actuals, accompanied 

with further Inquiries and testing based on current period's 

knowledge about the business. 

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the other Information. The other Information comprises the Information 

included in the Annual Report. namely Financial Performance - Five Year Summary. Director's Report including annexures to 

Director's Report. Corporate Govemance Report etc .• but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report 

thereon. Tlle other Information Is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion of the financial statements does not cover the other Information and we will not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibiiHy is to read the other information identified above 

when it becomes available and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 

statements or our knowledge obtained In the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the other Information, If we conclude that there Is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 

communicate the matter to those charged with govemance and review the steps taken by the Management to communicate 

with those in receipt of the other information. if previously issued. to inform them of the revision. 

Managemenfs ResponsibiiHy for 1he lnd AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 1 34(5) of the Act with respect to the 

preparation of these lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial performance 

(Including other comprehensive Income), changes In equHy and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the accounting 

principles generally accepted In India. Including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under section 1 33 of the 

Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 

application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. 

Implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the lnd AS financial statements that 

give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the lnd AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue 

as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as a whole are free 

from mate�al misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 

a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 

In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

lnd AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit In accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

(a) Identify and assess the �sks of mate�al misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the override of internal control. 

(b) Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

In the circumstances. Under section 1 43(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company 

has adequate lntemal financial controls with reference to financial statements In place and the operat1ng effectiveness of such 

controls. 

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures made by management. 

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

draw attention In our audMor's report to the related disclosures In the financial statements or, If such disclosures are Inadequate, to 

modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or candiHons may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the lnd AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, indMdually or in aggregate. makes it probable 

that the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 

qualitative factors In (I) planning the scope of our audit work and In evaluating the results of our work; and (II) to evaluate the effect 

of any ldentmed misstatements In the financial statements. 

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 

bear on our independence. and where applicable, related safeguards. 



Independent Auditor's Report (Contfnued) 

From 1he matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance In the audit of the financial statements of the current pertod and are 1herefore the � audit rna1te1s. We descdbe 

these matters In our auditor's report unless law or regulaHon precludes public disclosure about 1he matter or when. In extremely 

rare circumstances, we detemllne that a mattef should not be communicated In our report because the adVerse consequences 

of doing so would reasonably be expec1ed to outweigh the public Interest benefits of such communlcatton. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement. 

h required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (•the Order·). Issued by the Central Government of India In 

terms of sub-section ( 1 1 )  of section 143 of the Act, we give In 1he '"Annexure K. a statement on 1he matfefs specified In paragraphs 

3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

h reQUired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We hcJve sought and obtained all the lnformaHon and explanattons which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary tor the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion.. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far os tt appeal$ 

from our examination of those books. 

(c) 1he Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit and Loss (lncllclng Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 

In Equity and 1he Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are In agreement With the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS flnanclal statements complywtth the Indian Accounting Standards (lndAS) speclfted 

under S&ctlon 133 of the Act read with relevant rules Issued 1hereunder. 

(e) On 1he basis of the wrttten representaHons received from the dlrectolo of the Company os on March 31, 2019 and 

taken on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors of the Company Is dlsQuallfted as on March 31, 2019 from being 

appointed as a director In terms of Section 1 64 (2) of the Act 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the lntemal financial controls With reference to ffnanclal statements of the Company 

and the operating &ff&e1tveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report In •Annexure B". 

(g) According to Information and explanaHons given to us and based on our examlnaHon of the records of the Company, 

1he Company has pQcVprovided managerial remuneration in accordance with 1he requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 

of Sect1on 197 of the Act 

(h)WIIh respect to the other matters to be Included In the Auditor's Report In accordonce With Rule 1 1  of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations giVen to us: 

I. The Company has disclosed 1he Impact of pending llttgaflons on Its financial position In Its lnd AS ffnanclal statements 

- Refer Note 34 (2)(a) 1o the lnd AS financial statements; 

11. The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derlvattve contracts during the year ended 

March 31, 201 9, for which there weJe any mateool foreseeable losses. 

Ill. There has been no delay In transferdng amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Educaflon and Protection 

Fund by the Company. 

Mumbai 
May 29, 2019 

For KALYANIINALLA 8t MlsmY U.P 
Chartered Accountants 

Rrn �n. No.�y� 
Farhad M. Bhesanla 

Portner 
Membership No. 1 27355 
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ANNEXURE •A• TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 'Report on Olher Legal and Regulatory Requirements' in our 

Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the lnd AS Financial Stalements 

fortheyear ended March 31, 2019.) 

statement on Matters specified In paragraphs 3 It 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016: 

I. Fixed Assets: 

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 

fixed asse1s. 

(b) As explained to us, tne Company has a programme for physical verification of fixed assets at periodic intervals. In 

our opinion, tne period of verification Is reasonable having regard to tne size of tne company and tne nature of Its asse1s. The 

discrepancies noticed on such vermcatton are not material and have been properly dealt with In the books of account. 

(c) According to the Information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on tne 

examination of tne registered sale deed provided to us, we report that the tttle deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of 

land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company (formerly known as Pressure Cookers & Appliances 

Limited) as at the balance sheet date except the follOWing: 

Particulars of the Land 
Gross Block Net Block 

Remarks 
(as at March 31,  2019) (as at March 31,  2019) 

Freehold Land Rs.2 Lakhs Rs.2 Lakhs The possession of land has been given to the Company 
located at Hoshiarpur by the Government of Punjab, as per the agreement; 
admeasuring 20 Acres. the conveyance of which is yet to be finalized. 

In respect of the immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed asse1s in the financial 

statements, tne lease agreements are in the name of the Company (formerly known as Pressure Cookers & Appliances Limited), 

where the Company Is the lessee In the agreement except the following: 

Particulars of the Land 
Gross Block Net Block 

Remarks 
(as at March 31,  2019) (as at March 31, 2019) 

Leasehold Land Rs.O.B3 Lakh Rs.0.57 Lakh The registered lease deed is in the name of 
located at Jaunpur M/s PCA Engineers Limited, the erstwhile Company 
(Satharia) Plot no. that was merged with the Company under Section 
Al. A2, Al4, Al5 391 to 394 of the Companies Act. 1 956 in terms of 
admeasuring 24,282 the approval of the Honourable High Court of Bombay. 
square metres. The Company has applied to UP State Industries 

Development Corporation Limited for transfer of the 
lease In the name of the Company. 

ii. llhe Management has conducted physical vertfication of inventory at reasonable intervals. The discrepancies noticed on 

physical verification were not material in relation to the operations of the Company and tne same have been properly dealt with 

in tne books of account. 

Ill. llhe Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other 

parties covered In the register maintained under section 1 89 of the Act. Therefore the provisions of sub-clauses (a), (b) and (c) of 

paragraph 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable. 

iv. In our opinion and according to tne information given to us tne Company has not advanced any loans to tne persons covered 

under Section 1 85 or given any loans, guarantees or securities or made any investments as per the provisions of Section 1 86 of 

the Act. 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the directives 

issued by the Reserve Bank. of India and tne provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of tne Act and tne 

rules framed thereunder, as amended, with regard to tne deposits accepted from the public. According to tne information and 

explanations given to us, no order has been passed by tne Company Law Board or the National Company Law Tribunal or tne 

Reserve Bank. of India or any Court or any otner Tribunal. 
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vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under section 1 48( 1 )  of the Act. 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records examined by us. the Company 

Is generally regular In depositing undisputed statutory dues Including Provident Fund, Employees' state Insurance, Income Tax, 

Sales Tax. Service Tax. Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax. Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate 

authorities, wherever applicable. we have been informed that there are no undisputed dues which have remained outstanding 

as at March 31 .  2019. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us there are no dues outstanding of Income Tax. Sales Tax. Service Tax, 

Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added tax. Goods and Services Tax on account of any dispute other than the following: 

Name of the 
Financial Year Amount 

Amount paid 
Amount 

Statute 
Nature of Dues (F.Y.) to which the involved 

(Rs. In lakhs) 
unpaid Forum where Dispute is Pending 

amount relates (Rs. In lakhs) (Rs. In lakhs) 

Income Tax Act, 
Tax deducted 

2007-2008 to Commissioner of Income Tax 
at Source and 0.54 - 0.54 

1961 
Interest thereon. 

201 7-2018 (Appeals) 

2005-2006 26.69 6.68 20.01 Potno High Court 

Sales Tax. Value Sales Tax. Volue 2008-2009 and 
1 1 .93 0.91 1 1 .03 Tribunal 

Added Tax. Added Tax. 201 3-2014 

Central Sales Central Sales 2009-201 1 and 
Tax. Entry Tax Tax, Entry Tax 201 2-201 4 

147.28 9.82 1 37.46 Joint Commissioner 

and Goods & and Goods &  

Service Tax Acts Service Tax 
2005-2006, 2012-

2013. 201 3-2014 20. 18  0.83 1 9.35 Deputy Commissioner 

and 201 7-2018  

Central Excise 2015-2016  and 
23.88 1 .70 22. 1 8  

Commissioner of Central 

Act, 1 944 and 
Excise Duly, Feb'16 to Jun'1 7 Excise Appeals 

Finance Act, 

Service Tax and 

Penalties 1981 -1984 and Customs, Excise and Service 
1 994 2005-201 5  

1,314.28 51 .84 1 ,262.44 
Tax Appellate Tribunal 

viii. According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on the documents and records produced before us, 

there have been no defaults in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company does not hove loans or borrowings from financial 

institutions and government. The Company has not issued any debentures. 

ix. According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has neither raised money through initial public offer 

or further public offer (Including debt Instruments) nor taken any term loans du�ng the year. 

x. During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, and according to the Information 

and explanation given to us and representations made by the Management, no mate�al fraud by, or on the Company by Its 

officers or employees, has been noticed or reported during the year. 

xi. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the 

Company has paid/ provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 

of section 1 97 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

xll. In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company Is not a Nldhl Company. 

xlll. According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 

transactions with related parties are In compliance with Section 1 77 and 1 88 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such 

transactions have been disclosed in the lnd AS Financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 

the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures 

du�ng the year. 
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xv. According 1o 1he lnformaHon and explanaHons given 1o us and based on our examlnaHon of the records of 1he Company, 

the Company has not entered Into non-cash trcnsactlons wtlh 1he Directors or persons connected wtlh them. Hence 1he provisions 

of Sec11on 192 of the Act are not applicable. 

XVI. 'Rle Company Is not required to be registered undef Section 45·1A of the Resefve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence 1he provisions 

of paragraph 3 (lM) of the Order are not applicable. 

Mumbal 
May 29, 2019 

ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

For KALYANIWALLA & MISTRY LIP 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 1 OMJ07W/W1 00166 

��· 
Farhad M. Bhesanla 

Portner 
Membership No. 1 27355 

(Referred to In Paragraph 2(1J 'Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' In our Independent .Audttor's Report 

to 1h8 members of the Company on 1he lnd AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,  2019.) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial lfatemen11 under Clause (I) of SUb-JeCtion 3 

of Sec11on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Ac1") 

We have audited the Internal flnanclal controls With reference to financial statements of HAWICINS COOKERS UMIIED 

("the Company•) as of March 31, 2019, in conjunction with our audit of the lnd f>.S financial statements of the Company for the 

vear ended on that date. 

Managemenr• RespoNiblltty for Internal Rnanclal Controls 

'Rle Company's management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial controls based on the 

Internal control c:J��er flnanckll reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential componams of Internal control 

stated In 1he Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ·Guidance Note·) Issued by 1he 

lnstl1t..ll'e of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities Include the design, lmplementatton and maintenance of 

adequate Internal financial controls that were operaltng effectiVely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of Hs business. 

Including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of tts assets. the prevention and detec11on of frauds and e!TOIS. the 

accuracy and completeness of 1he accounting records, and 1he timely preparalton of reliable flnanclal lnformaffon, as required 

under the Act. 

Audltorl' Reeponelblllty 

OUr responstllllty Is to express an opinion on the Companvs Internal flnanclal controls With reference to flnanclal statemems 

based on our audit. 'We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing. issued by ICAI 

and deemed to be prescr1bed under section 143(1 0) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, 

bath applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and. both issued by the ICAI. Tilose Standards and the Guidance Note 

reQUire that we complywtlh ethical reQuirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

aclequate internal financial controls wilh reference 1o financial s1atements was astcblished and maintained and if such controls 

operated effec111fely In all material respects. 
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Our audit Involves pedormlng procedures 1o obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the lntemal flnanclal controls 

system With reference to 11nanclal statements ond their operotlng effectiveness. 01.1' audit of lntemal11nanclal controls wtth reference 

to financial statements included obtaining an undef'standing of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

assessing the risk. that a material weakness exists. and testtng ond evaluating 1he design ond operalfng effecttveness of lntemol 

control based on the assessed lisk. Tile procedures selected depend on 1he auditor's judgment. including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS 11nanclal statemenfs, whether due to fraud or eJTor. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the Company's Internal flnanclal controls system With reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls aver Financial Reporting 

A Company's Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements Is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of nnanclal reporting ond the preparation of lnd AS financial 

statements for external purposes In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

Internal financial control with reference to financial statements Includes those policies and procedures that 

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records 1hat In reasonable detail, accurately and fal� re11actthe transactions and dispositions 

of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparalfon 

of lnd AS 11nanclal statements In accordance With ganarol� accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 

of the company are being made only In accordance wtth authOrizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable asstJrance regarding prevenffon or ffmaly detec11on of unauthorized acqulsftlon. usa, or disposition of the 

compony'S assets that could have a materlal effect on the lnd � flnanclal statements. 

Inherent LlmltaHons of Internal Rnanclal Controls CMH" Financial Reporting 

Because of the Inherent llmttattons of lntemol 11nanclal controls With reference to 11nanclal statements. Including the 

possibility of collusion or Improper management oven1de of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detec1ad. Also, proJec1tons of any evaluation of the lntemal11nanclol controls With reference to financial statements to future 

periods are subjeCt 1o the risk that the Internal flnanclal control With reference to financial statements may become Inadequate 

because of changes In conditions, or that the degree of compliance Wl1h the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the Company has, In all material respects, an adequate lntemal flnonclal controls system With reference 

to 11nanclal statements and such lntemal nnanclal controls wtth reference to nnanclal statsments were operating effecttvaly as at 

March 31, 2019, based on the Internal control overflnanclal reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of Internal control stated In the •Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls OVer Flnonclal Reporting• 

issued by the lnslifute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Mumbal 
May29, 2019 

For KALYANIWALLA &. MISmY llP 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Regn. No. 104607WJW100166 

Farhad M. Bhesanio 
Partner 

Membership No. 1 27355 



BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019 

Note No. As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31. 2018 
RI. Lakhs Rs. Lakhl Rs. Lakhs Rs. L.akhs 

ASSETS 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 26,43.12 23,16.70 
Capitol Wot1t-in-Progress 1,77.54 1.04.55 
Intangible asse1s 2 6.47 Nil 
Financial~ 

Investments 3 0.25 0.25 
Other non-current financial asse1s 4 1,08.40 1,10.60 

Non-cuiTGnf tax assets (net) 5 30.22 14.75 
Deferred tax asse1s (net) 6 1,67.75 1.42.08 
other non-current assets 7 3,11.06 34,44.12 3.22.74 30,11.67 
CURRENT ASSE15 
Inventories 8 100,06.36 66,92.48 
Financial~ 

Trade receivables 9 78,54.52 47,14.27 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 61.00 8.03.12 
Other bank balances 11 34,58.61 79,10.04 
other cuiTenf financial assets 12 1,21.71 2.36.48 

other current assets 13 17,70.34 232,79.61 11.84.22 215.40.60 

TOTAl ASSETS 267,24.43 245,52.28 
EQURY AND UABILmES 
EQUilY 
Equity Share Copttal 14 5,21.71 5.28.78 
other Equity 15 113,32.70 118,61.48 104,53.28 109,82.06 
LIABILITIES 
NON-CURRENT UABILmES 
Financial Llabllnles 

Borrowings 16 21,34.41 13,82.42 
Pro'llslons 17 4,00.23 26,34.64 4.32.27 18.14.69 
CURRENT LIABIUTIES 
Financial LlabiiHies 

Borrowings 18 6,96.77 4,24.38 
Trade payables 19 

Total oulitandlng dues of micro enterprises 
and small en1elpl1ses 4,80.68 2.16.88 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 1han micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 47,95.89 49,95.93 

Other current financial liabilities 20 37,45.73 36,98.78 
Other current liabilities 21 24,55.47 22,20.50 
Pro'llslons 22 1,07.93 1.33.84 
Currant Tax Liabilities (naf) 23 45.84 123,28.30 65.21 117,55.52 

TOTAl EQUilY AND LIABILITIES 267,24.43 245,52.28 

See accomponying notes 1 to 34 forming part of the financial statements. 

As per oor report a even date 4-U)~ ~&. ~ 4)},. ~~ For KAI.YANIWAI.lA & MISIRY liP ~ I>JIIc OX>Jif>U~ A,..,._, Chartered Accountanls Brchm Vasudeva s. K. []wcrjl Ravl Kent 
Firm Reglsl!allon No.; 1 04607W/WI00166 Cholrrncr'l Vlce-Cholrmon & Dltoota Dltoota Dlrecfor 

~ 
DIN:00177451 Chlet ExacufM3 Officer DIN:00121824 DIN:<XXl87529 DIN:<XXll6184 

DIN:00141545 

~ ?-~ L , .,__llc, c....k- ~fJDf ~~ 
Farhad M. Bhesalia Susa1 M. Vasudeva Gen. V. N. Sharrna IReld.) Gerson do Cunha ~deepYadav Hulold Bhe&anla 
Partner Dlractor Dlreclor Dltoota ExectltM3 Dlreclor- Cofr¥xr1y Secmlay 
tl!emberstllp No.: 12 7 355 DIN:06935629 DIN:00177350 DIN:CXXl60055 Finance &AdmJnlslralfon 

tvllmbal: tlay 29.2019 
DIN:02909892 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 

Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lalchs Rs. Lakhs 

Income: 

Revenue from operations (net) 24 652,84.13 556,61.24 

other Income 25 4,14.49 11,08.87 

Total Income 656,98.61 567.70.11 

Expenses: 

Cost of materials consumed 26 246,75.13 183,67.21 

Purchases of stock-In-Trade 74,29.23 60,66.58 

Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods. } 27 -27,64.76 16,17.32 Stock-In-Trade and Work-In-Progress 

Excise Duty NIL 4,04.93 

Employee benefits expense 28 90,82.00 76,08.66 

Finance costs 29 3,97.87 4.14.39 

Depreciation and amortization expanse 2 4,01.28 3,65.58 

other expenses 30 182,43.56 145,44.25 

Total Elcpenses 574,64.31 493.88.92 

Profit before tax 82,34.30 73,81.19 

Tax expense: 

Currant tax 31(a) 27,96.16 24,64.34 

Deferred tax 31(b) 17.34 28,12.50 48.98 25.13.33 

Profit for the year (A) 54,21.80 48.67.86 

other Comprehensive Income 

Items 1hat will not be reclassified to Pront or Loss 

Actuarial Loss on Defined Benefit Plans -1,23.07 -1.51.35 

Tax Effect on 1he above 31(b) 43.00 --80.06 52.89 -98.46 

Items that wtll be reclassified to Profit or Loss NIL NIL 

Total other Comprehensive Income for 1he year (B) --80.06 -98.46 

Total Comprehensive Income for 1he year (A+B) 53,41.74 47.69.40 

Earning Per Share (face value Rs. 1 0 each) 

Basic and Diluted - (in Rupees) 32 102.53 92.06 

See accompanying notes 1 to 34 forming part of 1tJe "nonclaf statements. 

~~ ~~· Qk- =~:0~-~ ~ per ou repat of even date 
For KAI.YANIWAI.IA & MISTRY LLP 

Roll Kant S. K. DtwanJ E. A Kshksagar Chartered Accounta"rts 
Director Director Dlrecfor Vfo&.Cilaltmal & Cflofl7nal Rrm Reglslrallon No.: 104607W,W100166 
DIN:00016184 DIN:00087529 DIN:00121824 Chief~ Offlcet DIN:00177451 

~~ 
DIN:00141545 

~~ ~f~ "'--• c-.k- L X ~7·~ 
HuladBhesana SJdeep Yadav Gerscm da Cunha Gen. V. N. Sharma (Reld.) Susan M. Vcsudeva Farhad M. Bhesanla 
Ccxrpary Secretory ExeouiWe Dh'ector· Dlrecfor Dlrecta D/reclc( Pa!tner 

Rnance & AdmlnJs!rctlon DIN:00060055 DIN:00177300 DIN:06935629 t.1embership No.: 127355 
DIN:02909892 

M~.~nbci: May29, 2019 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2019 

A. Equity Share CGpltal 

Particulars 

AI at April 1, 2017 
Changes In fhe equity share capital during 1he year 
AI at March 31, 2018 

Particulars 

AI at April 1, 2018 
Changes In fhe equity share capital during the year 
AI at March 31, 2019 

B. other Equity 

Re8erve8 and Surplus 

Particulars securities &eneral Retained 
Premium Reserve Eamings 
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

Balances as at April 1, 2017 2,49.25 41,52.09 57,37.55 

CUrrent year pronts 48,67.86 
Actuarial Loss on Deftned Benent Plans net of tax -98.46 
DMdend on equity shares for the year 2016-1 7 -44,55.00 
Transfer to General Reserve -2,00.00 
Transfer from Retained Eamlngs 2,00.00 

Balances as at March 31, 2011 2,49.25 43,52.09 58,51.95 

Reserves and Surplus 

Particulars securities General Retained 
Premium Reserve Eamlngs 
Rs. Lakhs RI. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

Balances as at April 1, 2018 2,49.25 43,52.09 58,51.95 
CUrrent year pronts 54,21.80 

Actuarial Loss on Denned Beneftt Plans net of tax --80.06 
DMdend on equity shares for the year 201 7-18 ---44,62.32 

Transfer to General Reserve -2,00.00 
Transfer from Retained Eamlngs 2,00.00 

Balances as at March 31, 2019 2,49.25 45,52.09 65,31.37 

See accompanyfng notes 1 to 34 forming part of the financial statements. 

AI> par our report (J even dole 4-AJ} 0 ~ &:tt.~ ~ ~ 
For KAI.YANIWAilA lk MISIRY liP ~ Y.f G 
Chartered Accountants Brahm \tlsudeva S. Dutta Chouc:tlury E. A Kllllrsagar 
Firm Reglslrallon No.: 1 0460N//WI 00166 CllaJrrrtal 't/lo&Chalrrncn & Dlleclor 

DIN:00177451 ChletExecuiWe Offlcer DIN:00121824 
DIN:00141545 

L, ~tl4,c....J. 

4JP~, 
s. K. Chlarjl 

Dlleclor 
DIN:CC087529 

Balance 
Rs. Lakhs 

5,28.78 
NIL 

5,28.78 

Balance 
RI. Lakhs 

5,28.78 
NIL 

5,28.78 

Total 

Rs. Lakhs 
101,38.88 

48,67.16 

-91.46 

---44,55.00 

-2,00.00 

2,00.00 

104,53.28 

Total 

Rs. Lakhl 
104,53.28 
54,21.80 

--80.06 

---44,62.32 

-2,00.00 

2,00.00 

113,32.70 

~ki-
RC\11 Kent 
Director 

DIN:CCOJ6184 

Farhad M. Bhescrlla 
Partner 

Suscr1 M. \tlsudeva Gen. V. N. Sharma !Reld.) Gerson de Cunha &~deep 'ltldav Hulold Bhesanla 
Dk'ector Dk'eotor Director Ex.ecutfve Director· CClrll>OOY secretcrt 

Membership No.: 127355 DIN:06935629 DIN:00177350 DIN:CC060055 Flnalce &Aanlnlstralfon 

Mumboi: Mat 29, 2019 
DIN:02909892 



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2019 

For1heyear Forlheyear Signatures to 
ended ended Cosh Flow statement 

March 31, 2019 March 31. 2018 4-))J~ 
lb. Lalchs Rs. L.akhs Brahm Vosudeva 

A. Cash Flow from OperaHng Ac1tvltle~: OloJrman 
Profit before tax 82,34.30 73,81.19 DIN:00177 451 
Adjustments for : .C::o Depreciation and amortlzatlon expense 4,01.28 3,65.58 

Losst-Proflt on sale of property plant and equipment (net) 6.75 -4,14.23 
Interest Income -3,97.05 --6,53.63 Vle&-Cholrmon & 
Dividend income --0.04 --0.08 Chief Executive Officer 

Finance costs 3,97.87 4,14.39 DIN:00141545 
Provision for compensated absences --57.95 33.49 

~ Effect of Olher Comprehensive Income i1ems -1,23.07 -1,51.35 

Operating profit before worldng caplkll changes 84,61.08 69,75.37 
E. A Kshlrsagar 

Director 
Changes In WOI1dng capital DIN:00121824 

Adjustmen1s for-Increase/decrease 4)»'i, In opera11ng assets 
Inventories -33,13.88 15.82.93 S. K Dlwanjl 
Trade receivables -31,40.25 -79.58 Director 
other current flnanclal assets -2.09 16.75 DIN:00087529 

01her cuiT6nt assets --5,86.12 -4,53.76 

~kt-Other non-cuiT6nt nnanclal assets 2.20 -2.67 
01her non-current assets 2.48 -14.73 Ravl Kart 

Adjus1men1s for lncreasel--decrease Director 

In operating liabilities DIN:00016184 

Trade payables 63.75 12.86.12 4-.-J ~·~ 
01her current flnanclalllabiiHies 4,92.96 3.21 Susan M. Vcsudeva 
Other current liabilities 2,34.97 -1,70.54 Director 

Cosh generated from operations 22,15.09 91,43.10 DIN:06935629 

Income taxes paid (net) -28,30.00 -22.20.10 L , Net Cash from/--used In Operating Acflvltles A --6,14.91 69.23.00 
Gen. V. N. Sharma (Retd.) 

B. Cash Flow from lnvesttng Actlvtlles: Director 

Purchase of property. plant and equipment DIN:00177350 

(including capital advances) --1,38.07 -5,10.29 ~ ...... c..~.-
Sale of property, plant and equipment 34.34 4,31.57 

Gerscm do Cunho 
-Increase/Decrease In fixed deposl1s wtlh banks 44,51.43 -17,83.01 Director 
ln1erest received 5,06.84 6,02.97 DIN:00060055 
DMdend received 0.04 0.08 

~r:: Net Cash from/--used In lnveaHng Activities 8 41,54.59 -12,58.70 

C. Cosh Flow from Financing Acttvltles: Executive DJrector-
Finance costs paid -3,89.40 --6,09.07 Finance & Administration 

DMdend paid (Including tax on dMdend) --44,60.87 ---44,17.24 DIN:02909892 

Proceeds from fixed deposits 5,84.46 6,54.44 

~~ Repayment of fixed deposl1s -2,65.19 -8,78.42 

Net Cash used In Financing Acttvltles c --45,31.00 --52,50.30 Hutoxi Bhesonia 
Net lncreaaet--Decrease in Cash Company Secretory 

and Cosh Equivalents A+B+C -9,91.32 4,14.00 Mumbal: May 29.2019 

Cash and cash equlvalen1s as at the As per our report of even dale 
commencement of the year (Note 1 0) D 8,03.12 3,89.11 For KALYANIWAilA & MISlR'f UP 

Cash and cash equlvalen1s as at the ChCJtered .Acc:OI.nlonts 

end of 1tle year (No1e 1 0) E -1,88.20 8,03.12 F~~No.: 104607WN{100166 

Net lncrease{--Decraase In Cash ~~· 
and Cash Equivalents E-D -9,91.32 4,14.00 

Farhad M. Bhesanla 
Cosh and cash eQUMJtentJ as at March 31, 2019, ae net of Balk CNefctafts of Rs. 249.20 UJkhs {refer note 18). Partner 

See aocompanytng notes 1 to 34 forming part of the financial wternents. 1\Aembershlp No.: 127355 

rv'unbal: MCI'I29. 2019 

@ 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTE 1 

Basis of Accounting, Preparation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies 

1 . 1 Corporate Information 
Hawkins Cookers Limited (the 'Company') Is a public limited Company domiciled and Incorporated In India having Its 
registered office at F 1 01 .  Maker Tower. Cuffe Parade. Mumbai - 400 005. The Company's shares are listed since 1 978 and 
traded on the BSE. The Company is engaged in the manufacture. trading and sale of kitchenware. 
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31  • 201 9. were approved by the Board of Directors and 
autho�sed for Issue on May 29. 2019. 

1 .2 Basis of Preparation and Presentation 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting standards rind 
AS.) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 1 33 of the Companies Act, 201 3 ("Acr), the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 201 5. as amended. and other applicable provisions of the Act. 
The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and LDss and statement of Changes in Equity have been prepared and presented 
in the format prescribed in the Division II of the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act. 201 3. The statement of Cash Flows has 
been prepared and presented as per the requirements of lnd AS 7 statement of Cash Flows. The disclosure requirements 
with respect to the items in the Balance Sheet and statement of Profit and Loss Account are presented by way of notes 
forming part of the financial statements. 
The Company has considered a period of twelve months as the operating cycle for classification of assets and liabilities as 
current and non-current. 

1 .3 Basis of Measurement 
These financial statements have been prepared based on accrual and going concern principles following the historical 
cost conventions except for those financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. 

1 .4 Functional and Presentation Currency 
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. which is the Company's functional currency, being the currency 
of the p�mary economic environment In which the Company operates. All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest 
Lakhs. unless otherwise Indicated. Certain figures apparently do not add up because of rounding off but are wholly accurate 
in themselves. 

1 .5 Key Estimates lk Assumptions 
In preparing these lnd AS compliant financial statements. the Management has made judgements. estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets. liabilities (including 
contingent liabilities). income and expenses. The Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the 
financial statements are prudent and reasonable and a continuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgements 
based on hlsto�cal experience and other factors. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The areas lnvoMng critical estimates or judgements are as follows: 
a. Useful life and residual value of property. plant and equipment (refer accounting policy 1 .8(a)). 
b. Impairment of property. plant and equipment (refer accounting policy 1 .B(c)). 
c. Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations (refer accounting policy 1 .8(1)). 
d. Recognition of deferred tax assets (refer accounting policy 1 .8(p)). 
e. Fair Volue measurement of Financial Instruments (refer note 1 .6). 
r. Provisions and contingent liabilities (refer accounting policy 1 .8(h)). 
g. Allowances for Inventory (refer accounting policy 1 .8(d)). 
h. Allowances for doubtful debts (refer accounting policy 1 .B(e)). 

1 .6 Measurement of Fair Yalues 
The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require financial instruments to be measured at fair values. The Company 
has an established control frameworK with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company uses valuation techniques 
that are appropriate In the circumstances and for which sufficient data Is available to measure fair value maximising the 
use of relevant observable Inputs and minimising the use of unobservable Inputs. 
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques 
as follows: 
Level 1 : Quoted p�ces for Identical Instruments In an active market; 
Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs. other than level 1 inputs; and 
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data. 
If the Inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall Into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. then the 
fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level as the fair value hierarchy of the lowest level input that 
is significant to the entire measurement. 
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which 
the change has occurred. 

1 . 7 Standards Issued but not yet effective 
On March 30, 201 9, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting standards) 
Amendment Rules. 201 9, wherein lnd AS 1 1 6, Leases has been notified along with the amendments to other lnd AS. The 
effective date for adoption of these standards is financial periods beginning on or after April 1 .  2019. The Company is 
currently evaluating the effect of the said amendments. which is estimated to be not significant. 



1 .8 Accounting Policies 

a. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPEJ 
Recognition and Measurement 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the Hem can be measured reliably. PPE other than freehold land Is stated at o�glnal cost Including Import duties, non­
refundable purchase taxes and any directly �butable costs of b�nglng the asset to Its wor1dng condition for Its Intended use, 
net of tax/duly credits availed, if any. after deducting rebates and trade discounts, less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated Impairment losses, If any. If significant parts of an Item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted 
for as separate Items (major components) of PPE. Freehold land Is carried at original and hlsto�cal cost and not depreciated. 
PPE is derecognised from the financial statements either on disposal or when no economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal. Gains or losses a�slng from disposal are recognised In the statement of Profit and Loss In the year of occurrence. 
Self-generated PPE is capitalised at cost attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for its intended use. PPE 
which are not ready for intended use as of the balance sheet date are disclosed as ·capital Work-in-Progress·. Advances 
paid towards the acquisition of PPE outstanding at each reporting date are classified as capital advances under ·other 
Non Current Assets•. 

Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only when 
It Is probable that future economic benefits associated with the Item will flow to the Company and the cost of the Item can 
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period 
in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation & Amortisation 

Depreciation on PPE for the year has been provided on all assets on Straight Line Method, pro rata to the period of use, as 
per the useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act 201 3, except leasehold land which is amortised equally 
over the lease period. Assets costing less than Rs.5,000 are depreciated at 1 00% in the year of acquisition. 

b. Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated Impairment 
lossess. The Company amortises computer software using the straight Line Method over a period of three years. 

c. Impairment of Non Financial Assets 

The carrying value of assets or cash generating units at each balance sheet date is reviewed for impairment if any indication 
of Impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount an Impairment Is 
recognised for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

d. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV). Raw Materials are valued at weighted average 
cost. Inventory other than Raw Mate�als namely Packing Material, stores & Spares and stock-In-Trade are valued at the 
lower of First-In, First-Out cost and NRV. Work-in-Progress and Finished Goods include costs of conversion and an appropriate 
share of production overheads based on normal production capacity. Cost of Inventories Include all costs of purchases 
and other related costs Incurred In bringing the Inventories to their present location and condition and excise duty, If 
applicable. Slow, non-moving, obsolete and defective inventories identified are duly provided for and valued at NRV. 

e. Financial Instruments 

Initial Recognition and Measurement or Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
The Company recognises a financial asset or a flnanclal llablllty In Its balance sheet when the Company becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair 
value, except for trade receivables which are measured at their transaction price if the trade receivables do not contain a 
significant financing component. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets 
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from, as the case may be, the fair value of such assets or liabilities on 
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised Immediately In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost as these are held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of p�nclpal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets 
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company recognises twelve month expected credit losses for the financial assets, except trade receivables, if at the 
reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not Increased significantly since Its Initial recognition. The expected 
credit losses are measured as lifetime expected credit losses if at the reporting date the credit risk on financial asset 
increases significantly since its initial recognition. 
For trade receivables the Company applies a 'simplified approach' which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised 
from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss of trade 
receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the forward looking esti­
mates are analysed. 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability Is derecognlsed when the obligation specified In the contract Is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

f. cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents Include cosh-In-hand, cash-at-bonk In Current Accounts and Term Deposits with the banks with 
original maturity less than three months which ore readily convertible into cash and which ore subject to insignificant risk of 
change In value. For the purpose of the Statement of Cosh Flows, cosh and cosh equivalents consist of cosh and short-term 
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bonk overdrafts as they ore considered on Integral port of the Company's 
cosh management. 

g. Share Capital 

Ordinary shores ore classified as equity. 

h. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and 
it is probable that on outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be mode of the amount of the obligation. Provisions ore measured at the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. If the effect of the time value of money is 
material. provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. using a current 
pre-tax rote that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and risks specific to the obligation. The 
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
Contingent liabilities ore disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when there is a possible obligation arising from 
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is 
either not probable that on outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
cannot be made. 
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities ore reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

I. Leases 
Assets token on lease under which all the risks and rewords of ownership ore effectively retained by the lessor ore classified 
as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases ore recognised as expenses In the Statement of Profit and 
Loss on a straight line basis in accordance with the respective lease agreements. 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the �sks and rewards 
Incidental to ownership to the lessee. 

J. Revenue Recognition 
The Company has adopted lnd AS 1 1 5  - Revenue from contracts with customers w.e.f. April 1 ,  2018. The Revenue from 
contracts with the customers Is recognized only when the parties to the contract have approved the contract, they hove 
committed to perform their respective obligations, the �ghts of each party regarding the goods and services to be transferred 
are identifiable, the contract has commercial substance and it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration 
which It Is entitled In exchange of the goods and services which will be transferred to the customers. 
The company has only one Performance obligation of supply of promised goods to the customers at an agreed p�ce. The 
revenue is recognized only after the satisfaction of the performance obligation by transferring the promised goods and 
services to the customer, that Is at a point In time when the customer obtains the control of the sold goads. 
The Company recognizes Its revenue at transaction price which the Company expects to be entitled In exchange of 
promised goads to be transferred after deduction of trade discounts, volume rebates and taxes and duties collected on 
behalf of the government which ore levied on soles such as Goods and Service Tax. There is no significant financing 
component In the contracts which requires adjustment. 

k. other Income 
Interest income is recognized on accrual basis using the EIR method. 
Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established, it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of dMdend con be measured reliably. 
Duty benefits against exports ore accounted for on accrual basis, when the right to receive them as per the terms of the 
entitlement is established in respect of the exports made. 

I. Employee Benefits 
Post Employment Benents 
Defined Contribution Plan: 
Contributions to the Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, Deposit-linked and Employee state Insurance are charged to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. 
Defined Benefit Plan: 
Liability towards Gratuity Fund Is determined by on Independent actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Obligation 
is measured at the present value of estimated future cosh flows using a discounted rote that is determined by reference to 
the market yields as at the Balance Sheet date on Govemment Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government 
Bonds ore consistent with the currency and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation. 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

Provident Fund: 
The Company's Provident Fund operates under exemption granted under Section 1 7(1 )(a) of the Employees' Provident 
Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1 952. Conditions for the exemption stipulate that the employer shall make good 
deficiency, If any, between the Income earned on the Investments and the Interest payable to members at the rate 
declared by the Goverment. 
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts Included In net 
Interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset) and any change In the effect of asset ceiling (wherever applicable) Is 
recognised In other comprehensive Income and Is reflected In retained earnings and the same Is not eligible to be reclas­
sified to profit or loss subsequently. Defined benefit employee costs comprising current service cost past service cost and 
gains or losses on settlements are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefits expense. 
When the benefits of a plan have changed or when a plan Is curtailed, the resulting change In benefit that relates to past 
service or the gain or loss on curtailment Is recognised Immediately In the statement of Profit and Loss. The Company 
recognises gains or losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 
In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation under the defined benefit 
plans to recognise the obligation on a net basis. 
Long Term Employee Benefits 
The Company's net obligation in respect of long term employee benefits being long term compensated absences is the 
amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The liability 
Is determined by an Independent actuary, using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised 
immediately as income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Obligation is measured at the present value of 
estimated future cash flows using a discounted rate that is determined by reference to the market yields at the Balance 
Sheet date on Government Bonds where the currency and terms of the Government Bonds are consistent with the currency 
and estimated terms of the defined benefit obligation. 

m. Research and Development Expenditure 
Revenue expenditure on research and development is charged under the respective heads of accounts in the statement 
of Profit and Loss In the year In which It Is Incurred. Capital expenditure on research and development Is Included as part of 
the relevant Fixed Assets. 

n. Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is 
measured with reference to the EIR applicable to the respective borrowings. Interest and other borrowing costs attributable 
to qualifying assets are capitalised. Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. 

o. Foreign Currency Translations and Transactions 
Foreign currency transactions are translated Into the functional currency using the exchange rates on the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gain and loss arising from the settlement of these transactions, and from the translation of 
monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date exchange rates are recognised In the statement of Profit and Loss. Non­
monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate on 
the date of the transaction. The Company has not entered into any foreign exchange forward contracts during the year. 

p. Taxes on Income 
Income tax expense/Income comprises of current Income tax expense/Income and deferred tax expense/Income. It Is 
recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to the items directly recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income or in Equity. 
Current tax is the expected income tax payable/( recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit/(tax loss) for the year and any 
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable In respect of previous years. It Is measured using the tax rates and tax laws that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amount used for tax purposes. 
A deferred tax liability/asset Is recognised based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, by the end of the reporting period. 
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 
Is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the 
liability simultaneously. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to 
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to 
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority. 

q. Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share Is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, 
the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the period are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

r. Segment Information 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker (CODM). Tlle CODM has identified a single reporting segment namely manufacturing, trading and sale of Kitchenware. 
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NOTE 2 
Property, Plant lk Equipment and Intangible Assets 

GROSS BLOCK 

(Figures In Rs. Lakhs) As at As at 
Aprll1. Additions Dlsposals March 31, 

2018 2019 

Properly, Plant and Equipment 
Land Leasehold 1.93 NIL NIL 1.93 

(1.931 (NIL) (NIL) (1.93) 

Land Freehold 2.00 NIL NIL 2.00 
(2.00) (NIL) (NIL) (2.00) 

Buildings* 4,04.22 65.81 NIL 4,70.04 
(3.86.75) (18.22) (0.75) (4,04.22) 

Plant & Equipment 22.37.82 5.67.08 28.62 27,76.29 
(18,86.38) (3.62.41) (10.97) (22,37.82) 

Furniture & Fixtures 38.26 13.16 0.78 50.62 
(31.98) (7.88) (1.60) (38.26) 

Vehicles 1,49.58 67.18 34.24 1,82.53 
(86.82) (73.47) (1 0.71 J (1 ,49.58) 

Office Equipment 1,78.08 54.15 1.63 2,30.58 
(1,24.53) (54.36) (0.81) (1 ,78.08) 

TOTAL 30, ll .89 7,67.38 65.27 37,13.98 
(25,20.39) (5,16.34) (24.84) (30, 11.89) 

Intangible Assets 
Software NIL 6.89 NIL 6.89 

(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

* Include shares In Co-operative Societies. 

Previous year's ngures are given In brackets. 

DEPRECIATION 

As at Depreciation/ Dlsposals 
Ap~l1. Amortization 

2018 

0.06 0.03 NIL 
(0.03) (0.031 (NIL) 

NIL NIL NIL 
(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

34.73 18.44 NIL 
(17.19) (17.62) (0.08) 

5.50.20 3,07.51 6.99 
(2.67.98) (2,84.50) (2.28) 

6.39 4.32 0.14 
(3.02) (3.60) (0.23) 

30.43 23.49 17.07 
(16.64) (18.40) (4.61) 

73.38 47.07 0.96 
(32.24) (41.43) (0.29) 

6,95.19 4,00.86 25.18 
(3,37.10) (3,65.58) (7.49) 

NIL 0.42 NIL 

(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) 

As at 
March 31, 

2019 

0.10 
(0.06) 

NIL 
(NIL) 

53.16 
(34.73) 

8,50.71 
(5,50.20) 

10.56 
(6.39) 

36.84 
(30.43) 

119.50 
(73.38) 

10,70.87 
(6,95.19) 

0.42 
(NIL) 

NET BLOCK 

As at As at 
March 31, March3l. 

2019 2018 

1.84 1.87 

2.00 2.00 

4,16.87 3,69.49 

19,25.58 16.87.62 

40.05 31.87 

1,45.69 1.19.15 

1,11.08 1,04.70 

26,43.12 23.16.70 

6.47 NIL 
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NOTE 3 

Non-Current Investments 

Investments In equl1y Instruments 
(at fair value through profit or loss): 

Unquoted and Non-Trade 

Shares In Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. 
(2,500 Shares of Rs. 1 0 each tully paid up) 

NOTE 4 

other Non-Current Financial Assets 
(Unsecured and considered goodJ 

Secu�1y Deposits 

NOTE 5 

Non-Current Tax Assets (net) 

Excess taxation payments 

NOTE 6 

Deterred Tax Assets (net) 

Deferred Tax Assets 

On employee separation and retirement 

On provision for debts considered uncertain of recovery 

On other timing differences 

Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Difference between book balance and 
tax balance of fixed asset 

Deferred Tax Asset (net) 

NOTE 7 

other Non-Current Assets 

Capital advances 

Deposits 

Others 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

As at March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs 

0.25 

A3 at March 31 I 2018 

Rs. Lakhs 

0.25 

As at March 31 ,  2019 A3 at March 31 �  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 ,08.40 1 , 1 0.60 

As at March 31 ,  2019 A3 at March 31 �  2018 

Rs. Lakhs 

30.22 

As at March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

3,68.35 

1 .21 

46. 1 1  4,15.67 

2,47.93 

1 ,67.75 

As at March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

43.40 

2,65.84 

1 .82 3, 1 1 .06 

Rs. Lakhs 

1 4.75 

A3 at March 31 I 2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

3167.71 

1 .21 

42.50 4, 1 1 .42 

2169.33 

1 ,42.08 

A3 at March 31 ,  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

52.60 

2167.45 

2.69 3122.74 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 8 

Inventories 
(at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Raw Mate�als: 
Aluminium 
others 

Work-In-Progress: 
Pressure Cookers 
others 

Finished Goods: 
Pressure Cookers 
others 

stock-In-Trade 
stores & Spares 
Packing Materials 

As at March 3 1 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 6,41 .00 
8,75.20 25, 1 6. 1 9  

24,23.76 
27. 1 8  24,50.94 

34,62.86 
1 ,60.06 36,22.92 

1 1 ,39.53 
1 , 1 3.28 
1 ,63.50 

1 00,06.36 

Note - Inventories are hypothecated against fund and non fund facilities sanctioned by the banks. 

NOTE 9 
As at March 3 1 ,  2019 

Trade Receivables Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 
(Unsecured) 

Considered good 78,54.52 

Credit Impaired 0.86 

78,55.38 

Less: Allowance for credit impaired 0.86 78,54.52 

M. at March 3 1 ,  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 2,20.98 
7.47.38 1 9,68.36 

1 9,61 .97 
75.63 20,37.61 

1 4,36.98 
1 ,34.91 1 5,71 .89 

8,39. 1 4  
90.03 

1 ,85.45 

66,92.48 

M. at March 3 1 ,  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

47,14.27 

0.86 

47, 1 5 . 1 3  

0.86 47,14.27 

Note: Trade receivables are hypothecated against fund and non fund facilities sanctioned by the banks. 

NOTE 1 0  
As at March 3 1 ,  2019 M. at March 31 , 2018 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

Balances with banks - on current accounts 60.43 5,03.81 

Balances with banks - on deposit accounts NIL 2,99.00 

Cash on hand 0.57 61 .00 0.31 8,03. 1 2  

NOTE 1 1  
As at March 3 1 ,  2019 M. at March 31 , 2018 

other bank balances Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

Balances with banks - on deposit accounts 29,43. 1 7  71 ,98.05 

Earmarked balances with banks 

For unclaimed dividends 2,78.75 2,77.31 

For public deposits 2,00.00 2,98.00 

Margin money deposits 36.68 5,1 5.43 1 ,36.68 7,1 1 .99 

34,58.61 79,1 0.04 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 1 2  

other Current Financial Assets 
(Unsecured and considered good) 

Interest receivable 

Export benefits receivable 

Ottler receivables 

NOTE 1 3  

other Current Assets 
(Unsecured and considered good) 

Cenvat/Servlce taxNAT/GST etc. recoverable 

Prepaid expenses 

Ottler advances 

NOTE 1 4  

Equity Share capital 

AUTHORISED 

1 ,00,00,000 (March 31 • 201 6: 1 .00.00.000) Equity Shares of Rs. 1 0 each 

ISSUED. SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP 

52.67.61 5  (March 31 .  2018: 52.87.815) Equity Shares of Rs. 1 0  each. 
fully paid up. No change in the current year and previous year. 

As at March 31 ,  2019 As at March 3 1 ,  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

93.49 2,03.28 

1 1 .35 8.64 

23.94 1 ,28.78 24.56 2,36.48 

As at March 31 ,  2019 As at March 3 1 , 2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

12,1 7.41 

35.28 

5,1 7.65 1 7,70.34 

6,06.22 

59.34 

5,1 8.66 1 1 ,64.22 

As at March 31 ,  2019 As at March 3 1 , 201 8 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 0,00.00 1 0.00.00 

5,28.78 5.28.76 

The Company has one class of Equity Shares having a par value of Rs. 1 0 per share. Each shareholder Is eligible tor one vote 
per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders In the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, except In case of lnte�m dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to 

receive the remaining assets of the Company after dlst�butlon of all preferential amounts, In proportion to their shareholdlng. 

Shareholders holding more than 5 percent Equity Shares 

- Mr. Brahm Vasudeva: 1 8,28,632 (34.56%) [March 3 1 ,  2018: 1 8,28,732 (34.56%)] Equity Shares 

- Mr. Nell Vasudeva: 3,80,032 (7.1 9%) [March 31 . 2018: 3,80,032 (7 . 19%)] Equity Shares 

- Mr. Nikhil Vasudeva: 3,80,032 (7. 1 9%) [March 3 1 .  201 8: 3,80.032 (7. 1 9%)] Equity Shares 

NOTE 1 5  
As at March 3 1 ,  2019 As at March 3 1 ,  2018 

other Equity Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

A. Summary of other Equity 

Secu�tles Premium 2,49.25 2,49.25 

General Reserve 45,52.09 43.52.09 

Retained Eamings 65,31 .37 1 1 3,32.70 58.51 .95 1 04,53.28 

B. Nature and purpose of reserves 

1 . Securities Premium: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities 
Premium. 

2. General Reserve: The Company transfers a portion of the Net Profit before declaring dividend to General Reserve. 

3. Retained Eamings: Retained eamings are the profits that the Company has eamed till date, less any transfers to 
General Reserve, Dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. 

@ 



NOTES FORMING PART OF 1liE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 1 6  

Long Term Borrowings (Unsecured) 

Fixed Deposits: 

From Related Parties 

From Others 

As at March 3 1 ,  2019 As at March 31. 2018 
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

2,1 0.00 3,05.00 

1 9,24.41 21 ,34.41 1 0,77.42 1 3,82.42 

Note - Tenure of long term fixed deposits ranges from 1 year to 3 years and Interest rate ranges from 1 0.25% to 1 1  , 75%. 

NOTE 1 7  

Long Term Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits (Compensated Absences) 

NOTE 1 8  

Short Term Borrowings 

Bank. OVerdraft (Secured) 

Fixed Deposits (Unsecured) 

From Related Parties 

From Others 

NOTE 1 9  

As at March 3 1 ,  2019 
Rs. Lakhs 

4,00.23 

As at March 3 1 ,  2019 
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

3,87.63 

59.94 

2,49.20 

4,47.57 

6,96.77 

As at March 3 1 ,  2018 
Rs. Lakhs 

4,32.27 

As at March 3 1 ,  2018 
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

3,77.63 

46.75 

NIL 

4,24.38 

4,24.38 

As at March 3 1 ,  2019 As at March 31. 2018 

Trade Payables Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

Micro enterprises and small enterprises 
(refer Notes 1 9 . 1  & 1 9.2 below) 4,80.68 2,1 6.88 

Other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 47,95.89 52,76.57 49,95.93 52, 1 2.81 

Notes 

1 9. 1  . Dues to micro and small enterp�ses 

a. Principal and interest amount remaining unpaid 

b. Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 1 6  of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, along with 
the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during the year 

c. Interest due and payable for the period of delay In making payment 
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) 
but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

d. Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 

e. Interest remaining due and payable even 
In succeeding years. until such date when the 
Interest dues as above are actually paid to 
the small enterprises 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

NIL 

1 9.2. The identification of vendors as a ·supplier· under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006, 
has been done on the basis of the Information to the extent provided by the vendors to the Company. 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 20 

Other Current Financial Liabilities 
Current maturities of long term debt 
Fixed Deposits: 

From Related Parties 
From others 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Unclaimed DMdends (refer note below) 

Otner payables: 
Employee Benefits 
Gratuity Liability 
Trade and Security Deposits 

As at March 31 ,  2019 
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 ,05.00 
1 ,41 .50 2,46.50 

1 ,83.26 
2,78.75 

21,43.16 
5,45.96 

3,48.10 30,37.22 

37,45.73 

/4t. at March 31 , 2018 
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 0.00 

6,92.41 7,02.41 

1 ,74.79 

2,77.31 

1 7, 1 9.07 

4,86. 1 7  

3,39.02 25,44.27 

36,98.78 

Note: All amounts due to be transferred to Investor Educalion and Protection Fund have been duly transferred by the Company. 

NOTE 21 

Other Current Liabilities 

Provision for schemes and discounts to dealers 

Statutory dues 

Advance payments from customers 

NOTE 22 

Provisions · Current 

Provision for employee benefits (Compensated Absences) 

NOTE 23 

Current Tax Liabilities (net) 

Provision for Tax 

NOTE 24 

Revenue from Operations 

Sale of Products 

Otner operating revenues: 

Sale of Scrap 

Export Benefits, Incentives etc. 

Notes: 

24. 1 '  Disaggregation of Revenue 

Domestic 

Exports 

As at March 31 ,  2019 
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 7,60.83 

3,05.71 

3,88.92 24,55.47 

As at March 31 ,  2019 
Rs. Lakhs 

1 ,07.93 

As at March 31 ,  2019 
Rs. Lakhs 

45.84 

/4t. at March 31 , 2018 
Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 3,86.80 

3,30.01 

5,03.68 22,20.50 

/4t. at March 31 , 2018 
Rs. Lakhs 

1 ,33.84 

/4t. at March 3 1 ,  2018 
Rs. Lakhs 

65.21 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 ,  2019 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 ,  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

5,62.76 

41 .43 

609,00.73 

37,79.21 

646,79.94 

6,04. 1 9  

652,84. 1 3  

646,79.94 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

4,06.65 

2.72.29 

51 5.05.90 

34,76.40 

549,82.30 

6,78.94 

556,61 .24 

549,82.30 

24.2. The Revenue from operations has been dlsaggregated to comply with the lnd AS 1 1 5, although tt Is not reviewed 
for evaluating financial performance for the purpose of segment reporting. Revenue recognised In the reporting 
pe�od that was Included In the contract liability balance at the beginning of the pe�od Is Rs. 5,03.68 Lakhs. 

24.3. There Is no difference between revenue recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Contracted Price. 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF 1liE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 25 

Other Income 

Interest Income 

DMdend Income 

Other Non Operating Income 

NOTE 26 

Cost of Materials Consumed 

Aluminium 

Packaging 

Others 

NOTE 27 

Changes In Inventories of Finished Goods, 
Stock-In-Trade and Work-In-Progress 

Opening Stock 

Work-In-Progress 
Finished Goods 
Stock-In-Trade 

Closing Stock 

Work-in-Progress 
Finished Goods 
Stock-in-Trade 

Change 

NOTE 28 

Employee Benefits Expense 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 

Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 

Staff Welfare Expenses 

For the year ended 
March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

3,97.05 

0.04 

1 7.39 4,1 4.49 

For the year ended 
March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 28,39.61 

35,88.09 

82,47.43 246,75. 1 3  

For the year ended 
March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

20,37.61 
15,71 .89 

8,39. 1 4  44,48.63 

24,50.94 
36,22.92 
1 1 ,39.53 72,1 3.39 

-27,64.76 

For the year ended 
March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

80,88.52 

6,52.53 

3,40.95 90,82.00 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 .  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

6,53.63 

0.08 

4,55. 1 7  1 1 .08.87 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 ,  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

97,69.82 

27.1 3.31 

58.84.08 1 83.67.21 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 .  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 6,39. 1 3  
35,28.57 

8,98.25 60,65.95 

20.37.61 
1 5.71 .89 
8.39. 1 4  44.48.63 

1 6, 1 7.32 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 ,  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

67,27 . 1 2  

5.89.32 

2.92.22 76,08.66 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 29 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 ,  2019 March 3 1 .  2018 

Finance Coats Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lal<hs Rs. Lal<hs 

Interest Expense 3,93.28 4,08.30 

other Borrowing costs 4.59 3,97.87 6. 10 4,1 4.39 

NOTE 30 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 ,  2019 March 3 1 . 2018 

Other Expenses Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lal<hs Rs. Lal<hs 

Sub-contracting 51 ,66.36 36.40.31 

Packing and Forwarding Charges 47,89.57 38,57.66 

Advertising 34,65.73 26,07.94 

Power and Fuel 1 0,27.98 8.44.67 

Commission 7,1 3.02 6.19.33 

Consumption of Stores. Spares and Tools 4,02.29 3.31 .01 

Dealer Conference expenses 3,86.67 2.06.00 

Repairs and Maintenance- Plant and Machinery 3,50.74 2,98.1 7 

Repairs and Maintenance- Buildings 2,75.09 3,82.25 

Rent 1 , 1 8.41 1 . 1 9.35 

Rates and Taxes 26.05 71 .87 

Insurance 1 8 . 1 7  1 8.61 

CSR Expenses 1 3.30 2.07 

Miscellaneous Expenses 1 4,90. 1 7  1 82,43.56 1 5.45.01 1 45.44.25 

NOTE 31 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31 ,  2019 March 3 1 . 2018 

Income Tax Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lal<hs Rs. Lal<hs 

a. Components of Income Tax Expense 

Tax expense recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss 

Current Tax 

Current tax for current year 27,85.00 24,70.00 

Prior Years' tax adjustments 1 0. 1 6  27,95.16 -5.66 24,64.34 

Deferred tax [Refer note 31 (b)] 1 7.34 48.98 

28,12.50 25, 1 3.33 
Tax expense recognised in 
otner Comprehensive Income 

Deferred tax on actuarial loss 
on defined benefit plans --43.00 -52.89 

27,69.50 24,60.44 



NOTES FORMING PART OF 1liE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 31  (continued) 

b. Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilities (net) 

Opening balance of Deferred Tax Assets (net) 

Credit/---Debit in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the year: 

Deferred Tax Assets: 

On employee separation and retirement 

On provision for debts considered uncertain 
of recovery 

On other timing differences 

Deferred Tax Liabilities: 

Difference between book balance and tax 

balance of fixed asset 

Total Credit/-Debit in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Credtt/--Oeblt In other Comprehensive Income 
during the year: 

Deferred Tax Assets: 

On employee separation and retirement 

Closing balance of Deferred Tax Assets (net) 

c. Reconciliation of Etrec11ve Tax Rate 

Profit before tax 

Corporate tax rate as per the Income Tax Act 1 961 

Tax on Accounting Profit 

Difference due to: 

Weighted average deduction on R&D expenses 

Prior year tax expenses 

Tax effect due to timing difference of other items 

Expenses not deductible for Income tax purposes 

Others 

Total tax expense recognised during the year 

NOTE 32 

Eamings Per Share 

Profit after taxation attributable to equity shareholders 

Weighted average number of 
Ordinary Shares outstanding 

Eamlngs per share (face value Rs. 1 0) 
- Basic and Diluted - (In Rupees) 

NOTE 33 

Auditors' Remuneration 
(excluding Service Tax/Goads and Service TaxJ 

Audit Fees 

Fees for other services 

Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 

For 1he year ended 
March 3 1 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 ,42.08 

--42.36 

NIL 

3.61 

21 .41 

-1 7.34 

43.00 

1 ,67.75 

82,34.30 

34.94% 

28,77.40 

--68.23 

1 0. 1 6  

---46.83 

4.65 

1 8.02 -82.24 

(aJ 

(bJ 

(a)l(bJ 

27,95. 1 6  

For the year ended 
March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs 

54,21.80 

52,87,815 

1 02.53 

For the year ended 
March 31 ,  2019 

Rs. Lakhs 

23.70 

7.55 

1 .72 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 .  2018 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

1 ,38. 1 8  

-9.68 

---0.02 

-10.37 

-28.91 

-48.98 

52.89 

1 .42.08 

73,81 . 1 9  

34.61% 

25,54.48 

---63.97 

-5.66 

-47.97 

0.75 

26.71 -90. 1 4  

24,64.34 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 ,  2018 

Rs. Lakhs 

48,67.86 

52,87,81 5  

92.06 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 ,  201 8  

Rs. Lakhs 

23.70 

9.25 

NIL 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 34 

OTHER NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1 .  The Board has recommended a dividend of Rs. 80 per equity share of paid-up and face value of Rs. 1 0 each (previous 
year: Rs. 70 per equity share of paid-up and face value of Rs. 1 0 each) which, If approved by the shareholders, shall 
amount to Rs. 42,30.25 Lakhs (previous year: Rs. 37,01.47 Lakhs) with Rs. 8,69.54 Lakhs dividend dlst�butlon tax payable 
thereon (previous year: Rs. 7,60.85 Lakhs). 

2. Contingent Liabilities and capital Commitments 

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts are Rs. 1 7,45.27 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 1 8,37.32 Lakhs). 
These comprise: 

I. Excise Duty, VAT./Sales Tax and other claims disputed by the Company relating to issues of applicability, 
classification etc. aggregating to Rs. 1 7 ,44. 7 3 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 1 8,36.66 Lakhs). 

II. Income Tax claims disputed by the Company aggregating to Rs. 0.54 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 0.66 Lakhs). 

(b) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for Is Rs. 71 .36 Lakhs 
(Previous Year: Rs. 1 ,02. 78 Lakhs). 

3. Segment Information 

The Company operates in a single segment, manufacture, trading and sale of Kitchenware. 

The revenues from customers attributed to the Company's country of domicile amount to Rs. 609,00.73 Lakhs (previous 
year: Rs. 51 5,05.90 Lakhs) and revenues attributed to all foreign countries amount to Rs. 37.79.21 Lakhs (previous year: 
Rs. 34,76.40 Lakhs). 

During the year one customer (previous year: one customer) of the Company contributed to more than 1 0% of the total 
revenues amounting to Rs. 7 1 .58.43 Lakhs (previous year: Rs. 56,78.27 Lakhs). 

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 

The company has Incurred revenue expenses of Rs. 1 3.30 Lakhs (previous year revenue expenses: Rs. 2.07 Lakhs) towards 
CSR actMtles, of which NIL amount (previous year: Rs. 2.00 Lakhs) Is yet to be paid. The required CSR expenditure of the 
company Is Rs. 1 ,32.02 Lakhs (previous year: Rs. 1 , 1 7. 1 5  Lakhs). 

5. The possession of 20 acres of land has been given to the Company by the Government of Punjab, as per an agreement. 
the conveyance of which has yet to be finalised. 

6. Foreign Exchange Translations 

The net loss on foreign exchange translations debited to the statement of Profit and Loss Is Rs. 92 (previous year: gain 
credited Rs. 1 5.26 Lakhs). 

7. Research and Development Costs 

Research and Development costs debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs. 3,59. 89 Lakhs (previous year: Rs. 3,6 7.60 
Lakhs). Research and Development expenditure of capital nature is Rs. 20.43 Lakhs (previous year: Rs. 2.06 Lakhs). 

8. Financial Instruments - Fair values and Risk Management 

(a) Accounting Classifications and Fair values 

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and flnanclal llabllltles, Including their levels In the fair value hierarchy, 
are presented below. It does not Include the fair value Information for financial assets and flnanclal llabllltles not measured 
at fair value If the carrying amount Is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

Rs. Lakhs 

carrying Yalues/Falr Yalues Fair value Hierarchy 

Fair Value Fair Value Amortised Total Level l Level 2  Level 3  Total 
through through Cost 

Profit and OCI 
Loss 

March 31, 2019 

Non-Current Investments 0.25 NIL NIL 0.25 NIL NIL 0.25 0.25 

March 31, 2018 

Non-Current Investments 0.25 NIL NIL 0.25 NIL NIL 0.25 0.25 

Note: other Non-current Financial Assets (being Security deposits) and Current Financial Assets (being Trade receivables, 
Cash and cash equivalents, Other bank balances and Other financial assets) are all valued at amortised cost since the 
business model of the Company is to hold the assets in order to collect contractual cash flows. All Non-current financial 
liabilities (being Borrowings) and Current Financial Liabilities (being Borrowings, Trade Payables and Other Financial Liabilities) 
are valued at amortised cost. 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 34 (continued) 

(b) Measurement or Fair Values 

Tlle fair values of financial Instruments have been classified Into three categories depending on the Inputs used In the 
valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted p�ces In active markets for lden11cal assets or 
liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to unobservable Inputs (Level 3 measurements). 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

Level 1 : Quoted p�ces for lden11cal Instruments In an ac11ve market; 

Level 2: Directly or indirectly observable market inputs. other than Level 1 inputs; and 
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data. 

9. Financial Risk Management 

Tihe Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks. namely Market Risk. Credit Risk and liquidity 
Risk. The Company has a well established Risk Management Policy which has been duly approved by the Board of Directors. 
Tlle Risk Management Policy has been established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company as well as 
controls for mitigation of those risks. A periodical review of the changes in market conditions is also carried out to assess the 
impact of such changes on the Company and to revise the policies, if required. 

(a) Management or Credit Risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk that one pa� to a financial Instrument will cause a financial loss for the other pa� by falling to 
discharge an obligation. The Company Is primarily exposed to credit risk from Its trade receivables and Investments In the 
form of term deposits with banks. 

Tlle Company's credit risk exposure towards trade receivables is very low as the majority of its sales is on advance payment 
basis. Customer credit period ranges from 30 days to 60 days. Credit can be extended only to those customers who have 
been approved by the Company and only upto a predefined approved credit limit. The Credit limit is decided after 
assessing the credit worthiness of the customers based on the past trends and as per the established policies and procedures 
of the Company: The Company's customer base is widely distributed and the Company does not have concentration of 
credit risk. in the hands of a few customers. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored by the Company to 
ensure proper attention and focus on realisation. The historical experience of credit risk. in collecting receivables is very low. 
Trade receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets. 

Tlle Company invests surplus funds in fixed interest bearing term deposits with the nationalised banks. 

Tlle Company's maximum exposure towards the credit risk Is the carrying value of each class of financial assets amoun11ng 
to Rs. 1 1 6. 1 1 .55 Lal<hs and Rs. 1 37.74.75 Lal<hs as at March 3 1 .  2019. and March 3 1 .  2018. respectively. being the carrying 
amount of current account balances with the scheduled banks, term deposits with scheduled banks, trade receivables 
and other financial assets. 

(b) Management of Liquidity Risk 

Tlle liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with the financial 
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. Management of liquidity risk ensures that it has 
sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptoble losses. 

Tlle Company manages liquidity risk. by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents in the form of fixed interest rate 
bearing term deposits with the scheduled banks and also through an adequate amount of committed credit and overdraft 
facilities from a consortium of banks. The Company generates sufficient cash flows from operations which are used to 
service the financial liabilities occurring on a day to day basis. Shortfall, if any, is supported by the said committed credit 
facilities available to the Company from the banks. 

LlquldHy risk exposure 

Tlle following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. 
Rs. Lakhs 

Non-derivative financial Liabilities March 3 1 ,  2019 March 3 1 , 201 8  

< 1 Year > 1 Year Total < 1 Year > 1 Year Total 

Borrowings 9,43.27 21 ,34.41 30,77.68 1 1 .26.79 1 3,82.42 25,09.21 

Trade Payables 52,76.57 52,76.57 52,1 2.81 52,1 2.81 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1 ,83.26 1 ,83.26 1 .74.79 1 .74.79 

Unclaimed DMdends 2,78.75 2,78.75 2,77.31 2,77.31 

Employee Benefits 21 ,43. 1 6  21 ,43. 1 6  1 7, 1 9.07 1 7, 1 9.07 

Gratuity liability 5,45.96 5,45.96 4,86. 1 7  4,86. 1 7  

Trade and Secu�ty Deposits received 3,48.10 3,48. 1 0  3,39.02 3,39.02 

Total 97,1 9.07 21 ,34.41 1 1 8,53.48 93,35.97 1 3,82.42 1 07,1 8.39 

Tlle Company has not entered into any Forward Exchange Contracts (or other derivative instruments) as at the end of 
the year. 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 34 (continued) 

(c) Management of Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market conditions. These changes may result from changes in the Foreign Currency exchange rates and in interest rates. 

I. Currency Risk 

Currency risk Is the risk that the fair value of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In foreign currency 
exchange rates. The Company has very minimal exposure towards foreign currency nuctual1on on account of advances 
received from the foreign customers before the shipment of the goods. Production/delivery of goods Is closely monitored 
to mitigate the said foreign currency risk. 

Foreign currency exposures in respect of Export receivableS/payables are tabulated below: 

March 3 1 ,  2019 March 3 1 ,  2018 

INR USD EURO GBP INR USD EURO 
(LakhsJ (Lal<hs) 

Export payables [advances 
from customers) 0.81 972 32 1 15 1 9 . 1 7  29,320 1 26 

Export receivables 0.1 3  1 87 NIL NIL 1 9.08 29,590 NIL 

The Company has not entered into any Forward Exchange Contracts (or other derivative instruments) as at the end of 
the year. 

SensltMty analysis 

This analysis assumes that all the other variables remain constant and Ignores any Impact of forecast sales and 
purchases. M analysis of strengthening or weakening of the INR against the foreign currencies which the company Is 
exposed to as at the balance sheet date Is as follows: 

M 8% weakening of INR against the currencies to which Company Is exposed would have led to an approximately 
additional Rs. 1 ,024 gain In the statement of Profit and Loss for the year 201 8-1 9 (previous year: Rs. 587 gain). M 8% 
strengthening In INR against these currencies would have led to an equal but opposite Impact In the statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

II. Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or Mure cash flows of a financial Instrument w111 fluctuate because of 
changes In Market Interest rates. The Company does not have any exposure to Interest rate risks since all Its borrowing 
and Investments are fixed Interest bearing. 

Ill. Price Risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market value of 
investments. The Company does not have any material investments in the form of shares. mutual funds, etc. 

1 0. capital Management 

The Company manages its capital structure so as to ensure that all strategic as well as day to day capital requirements are 
met with the maximum focus on increasing the shareholders' wealth. The Management and the Board of Directors of the 
Company monitor the return on capital and the level of dividends to shareholders taking into account the Company's 
profitabiiHy, circumstances and requirements of the business. The Management of the Company ensures there is sufficient 
liquidity to meet the Company's short term and long term financial liabilities without any shortfalls or delays. The Company 
maintains sufficient levels of investments in the form of term deposits with scheduled banks. The Company also raises funds 
from the public and its shareholders in the form of fixed deposits of upto three years tenure as per the applicable laws, as 
an alternative source to bank borrowings, in order to meet its working capital needs. 

1 1 .  Employee Benefits 

(aJ Defined contribution plan 

The Company's defined contribution plans Include Provident Fund, Superannual1on Fund, Deposit-linked and Employee 
State Insurance. Contrlbut1on to these funds are recognised as an expense In the Statement of Profit and Loss under 
the line Item employee benefit expenses. The Company has recognised an expense of Rs. 5,29.05 Lal<hs during the 
year (previous year: Rs. 4, 77.79 Lal<hs) towards contribution to defined contribution plans. 

(bJ Defined benefit plan - Gratuity 

I. Plan characteristics 

Nature of Benefits: The Company operates a defined benefit final salary gratuity plan. The gratuity benefits payable 
to the employees are based on the employee's service and last drawn salary at the time of leaving. 

Regulatory Framework: There are no minimum funding requirements for a gratuity plan in India. The trustees ot the 
gratuity fund have a fiduciary responsibility to act according to the provisions of the trust deed and rules. Besides this 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 34 (continued) 

if the Company is covered by the Payment of Gratuity Act 1 972, then the Company is bound to pay the statutory 
minimum gratuHy as prescribed under this Act. 

Govemance of the Plan: The Company has setup Irrevocable trust fund to finance the plan liability. The trustees of 
the trust fund are responsible for the overall governance of the plan. 

Inherent Risks: The plan Is of a final salary defined benefit In nature which Is sponsored by the Company and hence 
It underwrites all the risks pertaining to the plan. In particular. there Is a �sk. for the Company that any adverse salary 
growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in an increase in cost 
of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is not subject to 
any longevHy �sks. 

Gratuity (Funded) 

II. Net Asset/-Liablllty recognised In the Balance Sheet 

1 .  Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at year end 

2. Fair value of plan assets as at year end 

3. Net funded obligation 

March 3 1 , 2019 
Rs. Lakhs 

2 1 , 1 2.47 

15,66.51 

-5,45.96 

4. Net defined benefit Liability recognised in the balance sheet at the year end -5,45.96 

Ill. Expense recognised In the Statement of Proftt and Loss tor the year ended 

1 . Current Service Cost 

2. Interest on net defined benefit liability 

3. Total expense 

IV. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income for the year ended 

1 .  Actuarial Loss arising from change in financial assumptions 

2. Actuarial -gain/Loss arising from change in demographic assumptions 

3. Actuarial Loss arising from change In experience changes 

4. Expected Return on plan assets 

5. Total expense 

V. Change In the present value of obligation during the year ended 

1 .  Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 

2. Current Service Cost 

3. Interest on defined benefit obligation 

4. Actuarial Loss arising from change in financial assumptions 

5. Actuarial -gain/Loss arising from change In demographic assumptions 

6. Actuarial Loss arising from change In experience changes 

7. Beneflt payments 

8. Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 

VI. Change In Fair Value or Assets during the year ended 

91 .32 

27.81 

1 , 1 9 . 1 3  

55.94 

--0.25 

78.92 

-1 1 .53 

1 ,23.07 

20,52.53 

91 .32 

1 ,28.84 

55.94 

--0.25 

78.92 

-2,94.81 

2 1 , 1 2.47 

1 .  Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 15,66.35 

2. Contributions by employer 1 ,82.41 

3. Interest on plan assets 1 ,01 .03 

4. Actual return on plan assets less interest on plan assets 1 1  .53 

5. Actual benefits paid -2,94.81 

6. Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 15,66.51 

VII. The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan and risk thereof 

Funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) 1 00% 

March 3 1 .  201 8 
Rs. Lakhs 

20.52.53 

1 5,66.35 

-4,86. 1 7  

-4,86. 1 7  

83.42 

1 9.60 

1 ,03.02 

27 . 15 

1 0.46 

1 ,34.81 

-21 .08 

1 ,51 .35 

1 9.81 .39 

83.42 

1 , 1 4.56 

27. 1 5  

1 0.46 

1 ,34.81 

-2,99.27 

20,52.53 

1 5,31 .97 

1 ,73. 1 7  

94.97 

21 .08 

-2,54.83 

1 5,66.35 

1 00% 

Risk exposure of plan assets can not be determined as Company's investment is in traditional plan of LIC for which 
the underlying assets are not known to the policy holders. 

VIII. Actuarial assumptions 

1 .  Discount Rate 7.1 0% 7 .  70% 

2. Salary Escalation 

3. In-service mortality 

4. Turnover rate 

6.00% 

IALM (2012-14) 
ultimate 

1 %  to 1 1 % 

6.00% 

IALM (2006-08) 
ultimate 

1 % to 1 1 % 
as per age as per age 

The estimate of future salary Increase considered In the actuarial valuation takes Into account historical trends, future 
expectations, Inflation, seniority. promotion and other relevant factors. 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 34 (continued) 

IX. Sensitivity analysis: The sensitivity of the overall plan obligations to changes In the key assumptions are as follows: 

Discount rate 0.50 % 
Salary escalation rate 0.50 % 

March 3 1 ,  2019 March 31. 201 8 
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 
-2.22% 2.35% -2.05% 2 . 1 6% 

2.34% -2.25% 2. 18% -2. 1 0% 

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement In the defined benefit obligation In Isolation and 
assuming there are no other changes In the market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes 
from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivHy analysis. 

X. Funding arrangements and funding policy: The money confTibuted by the Company to the fund to finance the 
liabilities of the plan has to be invested. The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the 
fund to an insurance company. The insurance company in tum manages these funds and the asset allocation which is 
within the permissible limits presc�bed In the Insurance regulations. Due to the restrlct1ons In the type of Investments that 
can be held by the fund, it is not possible to explicitly follow an asset-liability matching strategy to manage risk actively. 
There is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully pre-fund the liability of the Plan. The Company's philosophy 
Is to fund the benefits based on Its own liquidity and tax posiHon as well as level of under funding of the plan. 

XI. Expected contribution for the next year Is Rs. 2,00 Lakhs. 

XII. Projected plan cash flow: The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the 
current membership of the plan based on the past service of the employees as at the valuation date: 

Maturity Profile 
Expected Benefits for year 1 
Expected Benefits for year 2 
Expected Benefits for year 3 
Expected Benefits for year 4 
Expected Benefits for year 5 
Expected Benefits for year 6 
Expected Benefits for year 7 
Expected Benefits for year 8 
Expected Benefits for year 9 
Expected Benefits for year 1 0 and above 

Gratuity (Funded) 
March 3 1 ,  2019 March 31. 201 8 

Rs. Lakhs Rs. Lakhs 

6,83.08 
2,85.89 
2,15.78 
2,44.33 
2,23.43 
1 ,39.15 
1 ,99.74 

96.81 
1 ,57.74 
9,50.70 

7,58.55 
3,1 0.69 
2,13.27 
1 ,94.06 
1 ,77. 1 3  
1 .40.58 
1 ,25.37 
1 ,88.93 

86.64 
9,30.59 

XIII. The weighted average duration for payment of above cash nows 4.55 Years 4.21 Years 

1 2. Related Party Disclosures 

1 . Related Parties 
(a) Individual having control and relatives: 

Mr. Brahm Vasudeva (DIN: 001 77 451 ) Chairman, Non-Executive Director 
and relatives: 
Mr. Nell Vasudeva 
Mr. Nikhil Vasudeva 
Mrs. Anuradha s. Khandelwal 
Ms. Gitanjali V. Nevatia 
Mrs. Gayatri S. Yadav* 
Mrs. Susan M. Vasudeva (DIN: 06935629) Non-Executive Director 

(b) Key Management Personnel and their relatives: 
(i) Executive Directors and their relatives 

Mr. S. Dutta Choudhury (DIN: 00141 545) 
Mr. Sudeap Yadav (DIN: 02909892) 
and relatives: 
Mrs. Sonya Dutta Choudhury 
Mrs. Gayatrl S. Yadav* 

(ii) Independent Directors and their relatives: 
Mr. J. M. Mukhi (DIN: 00152618) 
Mr. Shlshlr K. Dlwanjl (DIN: 00087529) 
Mr. Gerson do Cunha (DIN: 00060055) 
Gen.V. N. Sharma (Retd.) (DIN: 001 77350) 
Mr. E. A Kshlrsagar (DIN: 00121 824) 
Mr. Ravi Kant (DIN: 00016184) 
and relatives: 
Mr. Jal Dlwanjl 
Mr. Apurva Diwanji 
K.M. Diwanji (HUF) 

Vice-Chairman & Chief Executive Officer 
Executive Director-Finance & Administration 

Non-Executive Independent Director 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
Non-Executive Independent Director 
Non-Executive Independent Director 



NOTES FORMING PARI' OF lHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE34(conflnued) 

(c) Employees' post-employment benefit plan 
Hawldns Cookers LlmHad Employees Provident Fund Trust 

* Related Party Transactions and Ou1stcndlng balances ere disclosed under the heading 'lndMdual having control 
and relatives' and not under the heading of 'Key Management Personnel and relatives'. 

2. Disclosure of transactions belween the Company and Related Parties and the status of outstanding balances as 
at March 31, 20 19 (Previous year's figures given in brackets) 

(I) Remuneration 
Short term employee benefits 

Post employment beneflls 

Total Remunerallon 

(11) Non Executive Directors' Fees and Commission 

Individual 
having conlrol 

and relaHves 
Rs. Lakhs 

96.78 
(88.22) 

7.44 
(6.10) 

1,04.21 
(94.32) 
25.75 

(23.25) 
(Ill) Benefits provided to fhe Non-Execul1ve Chairman, as Advisor 30.57 

(IV) Dividend paid 

(v) Fixed deposits accepted 

(\11) Interest paid on Fixed deposits 

(\Ill) Fixed deposits repaid 

(\1111) Sale of fixed ossels 

Balances as at year end 
Fixed Deposits (Unsecured) 
March 31. 2019 
March 31, 2018 

(8.80) 
20,67.60 

(20,67.81) 
NIL 

[NIL) 
44.55 

(67.85) 
NIL 

(1.10.00) 
NIL 

[NIL) 

4,07.63 
(4,07.63) 

Key Management Per10nnel 
and their relatives 

ExecuHve Independent 
Directors and Directors and 
their relaHves their relallves 

Rs. Lakha RI. Lakhs 

5,87.56 NIL 
[5,12.71) (NIL) 

27.99 NIL 
(27.99) (NIL) 

6,15.54 NIL 
!5.40.71) (NIL) 

NIL 90.75 
(NIL) (79.75) 

NIL NIL 
(NIL) (NIL) 
0.18 28.94 

(0.18) (28.94) 
NIL 10.00 

(NIL) (90.00) 
NIL 32.16 

(10.08) (28.07) 
NIL NIL 

!1.95.00) (NIL) 
NIL NIL 

[4,25.00) (NIL) 

NIL 2,95.00 
(NIL) (2,85.00) 

Transactions between the Company and Hawldns Cookers Limited Employees Provident Fund Trust and the Status 
of outstanding balances as at March 31, 2019 (Previous year's figures given In braclcals) 

During the year company has paid Rs. 4,50. 78 Lakhs (previous year: Rs. 4,14.36 Lakhs) to Hcwklns Cookers Limited 
Employees Providenf Fund Trust towards the Company's end the employees' contribufion. Balance payable to the 
sold Trust as at March 31, 2019: Rs. 46.83 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 43.03 Lakhs). 

13. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to fhls year's clcsslncat1on. All the values 
have been stafed In Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise Indicated. 

Mumboi: Mav 29, 2019 

Signatures to Notes 1 to 34 forming pert of the nnanclal slalemenls. 

~~ .t:~~A~ ~:1 
ChCJmlal Vlc&Ctla£7TiaJ & D/tector Director 

DIN:00177451 Ch/efEx.eculfie Officer DlN:OOI21824 DIN:OOJ87529 
DIN:00141545 

~1-~ L , ~~~ ~foJ.oi 

~~ 
Ravl Kent 
Dflectof 

DIN:00016184 

SUSCin M. 'vt19Jdeva Gen. V. N. Shcrmc (Retd.) Gerson de Curtlc &.!deep 'ltldav Hulold Bhescnlc 
Director Director Director Exeoulfie Dlrectol'- Gorr(Jany semmy 

DIN:06935629 DIN:00177350 DlN:00060055 Flnalce &Ac:tn/nlslrallo 
DIN:0290989:2 



A New TV Commercial for the Futura Pressure Cooker 

1. "Wow! The food is tasty and, 
also, healthy!" 

2. "And it does not whistle-
because it is an advanced pressure cooker." 

Futura Pressure Cooker sales in the second half of 2018-19 were 
24.1% higher than the second half of 2017-18 as against the sales without 

Futura Pressure Cooker in the same period which were 17.9% higher. 
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With a Desirable Product, 

A Well-Designed Package 

Adds to its Saleability 
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